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I am pleased to present the 2014 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

Riding on the successful implementation of our marketing
strategies and expansion of sales channels, our Group managed to
achieve a strong profit growth momentum in 2014. Our Group’s
turnover increased by approximately 24% to approximately
RMB4,843.9 million (2013: RMB3,907.5 million) as a result
of the increase in our sales volume. Our sales volume rose by
approximately 28% to 258,443 tonnes (2013: 201,851 tonnes).
Net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders surged to
approximately RMB224.6 million (2013: RMB130.6 million).
The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: HK$0.05).

2014 marked the Group’s 30th anniversary and was our
remarkable year with sales revenue, sales & production volume
and net profits reached record high. We are excited to see these
fruitful returns as a result of our capacity expansion plan in the
past few years. The annual planned production capacity of the
Group may reach 350,000 tonnes in 2015.

3R Annual Report 2014
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During the year, we have established an associate — Jiangxi
Province Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd for the
production of aluminium alloy construction panels. We believe that
this pilot project would broaden our product portfolio as well as the
market.

Also, through our newly set up wholly owned subsidiary, we have
obtained relevant approvals from the governments to construct
Xingfa Aluminium Headquarters Building for sale on a piece of
land situated in Nanchuang County, Foshan City. This will become
another profit engine of the Group in the next few years. With
our commitment and efforts, I believe our Group will continue its
growth momentum in 2015 and deliver sustainable returns to our
shareholders.

BN EE

XEMTIRE

R AR B — R A R L A R
L g AR S AT PR A W - AR FE B B SRR
B o AR BAE > %ol B TH B IR B A 2 B 2
AL S i g e

BEAN - BT L 2 A E I A R ARG
5 U AR BR At E > DUEE 2 — e 7 6k L0 T e
B > Bl B B S AR MR B 4 - L
A IS A A A A AR ] 55— T A AR R @ TR
— H ZRYE K5 T3 AR AR AR L AT R
T FAFR AR R E S 0 A S R R
A& AT A5 A (] g




B 2% En 2R A BR A &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
3R Annual Report 2014

Chairman’s Statement

BV

On behalf of Xingfa, I would like to take this opportunity to thank 7% A R #5 B0 4% & (¢ R BL 38 R .0 G = F & % (v
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express my appreciation to the customers and business partners PAORZ TR RRHE -
and shareholders for their continuing support.

LIU Libin, Chairman FE > BIR
Foshan China, 27 March 2015 R —F—-AF=H 1+ tH

BREBHHEFRAT=KAT (LA BEREREE CIE) ARLF

i
ECIRL PL I TRY |

ERAREE OIA) ERLF



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 $8 2 4 iR AR A

Annual Report 2014 4 7§

Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o a B g3

Review of operations

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profiles
manufacturers in the PRC and principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles which are applied as
construction and industrial materials. Currently, we are one of
the largest providers of electricity conductive aluminium profile
for metro vehicles in the PRC. Leveraging on our advanced R&D
capability and commitment to quality, our Group has established
extensive and stable sales networks in the PRC and overseas for
the past 30 years. Xingfa Aluminium was awarded as the No. 1 of
the Top-Ten National Aluminium Profiles Enterprises by the China
Non-Ferrous Metals Fabrication Industrial Association (“CNFA”)
in 2003 and 2008. In 2013, Xingfa Aluminium was further
awarded as the No. 1 of the Top-Twenty National Aluminium
Profiles Enterprises by CNFA.

2014 marked the Group’s 30th anniversary and was our
remarkable year with sales revenue, sales and production volumes
and net profit reached record high. We are excited to see these
fruitful returns from the capacity expansion plan executed for the
past few years. Sichuan Chengdu plant, Jiangxi Yichun plant and
Henan Qinyang plant have all become profit engines to the Group.
With a view to becoming an all-rounded and one-stop aluminum
service provider in the PRC, these strategically-located plants
allow Xingfa Aluminium to access to our clientele closely and
tape our products to the market in a more convenient and cost-
effective way. Therefore, it in return increases our market share in

the long-run.

Meanwhile, our associate — Jiangxi Province Jingxing Aluminium
Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd had commenced trial production
successfully in 1H14 with an annual designed production capacity
of 100,000 m2. Given that the use of aluminium alloy construction
panels in the PRC construction industry is still in its development
stage, we believe that with the formation of this associate, our
Group will engage in the construction aluminium panel business
based in Jiangxi Province, PRC, as a pilot project to further open
up the business opportunities for our Group’s products in the PRC
construction industry and to further broaden the product line of

our Group.
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Turnover

Turnover and sales volume recorded approximately RMB4,843.9
million and 258,443 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2014
(“Year”) respectively (2013: RMB3,907.5 million and 201,851
tonnes). The increase in turnover during the Year was mainly due

to the increase in sales volume.

Riding on the successful execution of our marketing strategies
and expansion of our sales channels, our sales volume increased
by approximately 28% year-on-year to 258,443 tonnes in the
Year. In particular, construction aluminium profiles increased
by approximately 29% year-on-year to 209,690 tonnes in the
Year (2013: 162,439 tonnes). Meanwhile, our sales volume for
industrial aluminium profiles also increased by approximately
24% year-on-year to 48,753 tonnes (2013: 39,412 tonnes).

9
EE AT HE R
21573 ok &=

Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Liu Libin

REBEWEBTESR
EEREA

Honorable Chairman &
Executive Director
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The following table sets forth our turnover and its percentage of — FREII AL B T —_F — =4F L ZF— U
turnover by product category for the years ended 31 December |+ = H =1 — H [L4F 4% 2= 5 FRIE ) 4 2 5 2E 50

2013 and 2014: KEAEG:
2014 2013
ZR A &R —=
RMB’000 % RMB 000 %
AR¥Fi % ANRBET T %
Manufacture and sale of aluminium A B SRR M
profiles
- Construction aluminium profiles — SR T b 3,916,755 80.9 3,186,320 81.5
— Industrial aluminium profiles — T2 795,350 16.4 673,391 17.2
4,712,105 97.3 3,859,711 98.7
Others (Note) HoA (g a) 131,810 2.7 47,746 1.3
Total At 4,843,915 100.0 3,907,457 100.0

Note:  Our Group’s other turnover represented turnover generated from B - A A ) At SE R AR RS B SR A A K
the manufacture and sale of aluminium bars, moulds and spare FFAT > LA SR A0 R S A 2 R e
parts and the provision of processing services.

Our Group’s turnover by geographical segments during the years AEMREKE —F — =R - F—MN4E+ A

ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 are as follows: =+t —HIFFEE B 2 B EE N
2014 2013
“E -4 —F—=
RMB million % RMB million %
AR & % AR B H#T %
The PRC Gl 4,771.5 98.5 3,796.9 97.2
North America b3 0.2 0.0 4.6 0.1
Europe Bk 0.5 0.0 232 0.6
Hong Kong v 56.7 1.1 34.1 0.9
Asia Pacific (other than the PRC and  5E AHLIE (B K&

Hong Kong) A s BR A ) 7.9 0.2 39.6 1.0
Others FoAth 7.1 0.2 9.1 0.2

-

Total Mt 4,843.9 100.0 3,907.5 100.0
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For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, domestic sales
in the PRC in aggregate accounted for approximately 97.2% and
98.5% of our Group’s turnover respectively.

Our Group also exports directly to the United States, Europe
and other Asian countries. For the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014, non-domestic sales in aggregate accounted
for approximately 2.8% and 1.5% of our Group’s turnover
respectively.

The following table sets forth the sales volume and average

selling prices of our principal products during the years ended 31

o LI o B o3 B

W F SRR A=Ak
i o B A B 54015 9 5 2
97.2% % 98.5% °

AR ] E R B O E SR RO B H A HE
MER - BE L — A -+ H
= —H IR R B R A AR A S B 2
B P #12.8% M 1.5% °

SRR RN REE SR
F—WEF A=+ —HIEEEZHE LT E

December 2013 and 2014: 1 :
2014 2013 Change in %
~E - xR —-= 5 1) %
Construction aluminium profiles # 58 &4 7 4
Revenue (RMB000) W (ANRWT L) 3,916,755 3,186,320 22.9
Quantity (tonnes) B (M) 209,690 162,439 29.1
Average selling price per tonne g W7 14 B
(RMB) (AR #5) 18,679 19,616 -4.8
Industrial aluminium profiles T3 SRR
Revenue (RMB’000) BEBEARHFTIC) 795,350 673,391 18.1
Quantity (tonnes) B () 48,753 39,412 23.7
Average selling price per tonne g W - 1) B
(RMB) (AR L) 16,314 17,086 -4.5
Total 5
Revenue (RMB 000) BEFNRETIL) 4,712,105 3,859,711 22.1
Quantity (tonnes) B (M) 258,443 201,851 28.0
Average selling price per tonne g W - 1) B
(RMB) (AR WIT) 18,233 19,122 4.6

11
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Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by approximately 20% year-on-year
to RMB4,086.3 million in the Year (2013: RMB3,397.4 million)

which was aligned with the increase in turnover.

A

o B A

A R AR AR 28 B AR 7 A R £920% &
N R #4,086,300,00000 ( =& — =4 AR
3,397,400,0007C) > M BL SERA R A FE— B -

2014 2013 Change in %
—EomE % = 8%
Average market price of aluminium #§¢ 2 P {E (1§
ingots (VAT included) (RMB) WEB) (ARHT) 13,715 14,775 7%
Gross profit and gross profit margin EEV D EEY IS

Gross profit margin increased to 15.6% during the Year (2013:
13.1%) whilst sales to production ratio slightly increased to 97.9%
(2013: 97.2%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our

aluminium profiles:

AR BF R E15.6% (. F— =4
13.1% ) > 1§ 8 A 78 Lb SR S 08 in 297.9% (—
FE—ZF1972%) o

N RGN A 8 R 2 B A

2014 2013

U2 —E -4

Average gross profit margin ROy I 15.6% 13.1%
— Industrial aluminium profiles —TEEAM 14.4% 9.6%
— Construction aluminium profiles — S R A 15.8% 13.3%

With the completion of investments in Sichuan Chengdu, Jiangxi
Yichun, Henan Qinyang and Guangdong Sanshui plants, each
plant has its own production specialty. This specialty improved
the whole production logistics starting from orders acceptance
to delivery for each plant, thereby resolving our production
mismatch amongst four plants in the long run. As a result of better
division of labour in production specialty, better economy scale of
production can be achieved to lower the unit cost. It helped both
increase in production volume and in return improved the gross

profit margin.

W 5 5 SO T 1| BT ~ PG B T R D B SR
R=IKR S 2 B0 > 45 WS A AR B 2 R
Ro-WHROMESME A RZTHEEZL R
R 2R W A - A T T T PR R A A I ] e
[ < ] A AR E SR L © oy A A R AT B 3 55 T
AT SEGF 3 TG » TRl A A S 2 A AR 4 A
e AT B 07 B AR o FC A I 4 Bl 2 A o % A T ok
B
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Meanwhile, sales orders with higher gross profit margin were
concluded for the environmental friendly and energy saving
aluminium profiles, representing approximately 23.3% and 18.8%
of sales orders for construction aluminium profiles and overall
aluminium profiles respectively. The drop in average unit cost
as a result of better division of labour and the implementation
of cost saving measures definitely improved the average gross
profit margin for construction aluminium profiles. As such, these
changes in product mix contributed to the improvement of the
overall gross profit margin to 15.6% in the Year.

Other revenue and other net loss

Our Group recorded other revenue and other net loss of
approximately RMB31.9 million for the Year (2013: RMB41.9
million).

For the Year, rental income for the leasing of warehouses at
Sichuan Chengdu plant increased to approximately RMB13.1
million (2013: RMB6.7 million). However, it was offset by the
decrease in government grants for the Year. During the Year,
government grants of approximately RMB13.0 million were
recorded as a result of the recognition of our successful capital
investments in Sichuan Chengdu and Jiangxi Yichun plants (2013:
RMB26.2 million). Besides, the replacement of aged smelting
facilities also caused the loss of disposal of property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB4.9 million (2013: RMBI1.3
million).

Distribution costs

Distribution costs increased by approximately 46% to
approximately RMB102.3 million for the Year (2013: RMB70.2
million), whilst our distribution expenses as a percentage of
turnover rose to approximately 2.1 % (2013: 1.8%). Such increase
was mainly attributable to the increase of technology service fee
by RMB15 million.

o LI o B o3 B

B I ] B > st B 60 7 B 2R b 9 B L o R
2 BHEFT R 4y B AL E S R b K B g R b
Z BT B 4)23.3% /% 18.8%  [H H 4 4r T4 71
AR R R B A AT iR O ks
SR 2 T ERE FM ZEEMASZ
SR ANAE B 2 BB R R E £15.6% ©

Jfth e 2% B2 L A s 1835

A A5 [ S AR AT BE Bk A Ak g8 & At ks 4R
A N R %31,900,0007C (—F— =4 ARHF
41,900,0007C) ©

AR AR LR DU SR R 2 A 2 gl A
HnE# ANR¥13,100,00000 ( “F— =4 AR
#6,700,0000C ) © SR » H: R AR 4 B 2 B il G
U0 T K B o A AR AR B TR 3% R A 4R ) 1 ) A 1Y
U I B VT V6 B A S B HE A 5 T Bk A5 R
AL # R #13,000,00000 ( & — = 4F 0 NRHF
26,200,0007T) ° 73 4 » B 6 3 AL v B a it N 22 L
WY R R R A R ¥574,900,000 00
(= F— =4 AR%1,300,0007T) °

51 88 A

AR Z N AR BN B46% E N R
102,300,0007C ( — % — =4 : A R %70,200,000
J6) > AL 2 s A EEF 2 A E
FHEL21% (ZF— =4 1:1.8%) - LFFEEEH
A B 9l B 2 18 i A R #15,000,000 T BT 5 -
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately RMB258.7 million
for the Year, which was approximately 42.5% higher than that in
2013 (2013: RMB181.6 million) and our administrative expenses
as a percentage of turnover rose to approximately 5.3% (2013:
4.6%). Such increase was mainly attributable to the allowance
for doubtful debts of RMB10.1 million and impairment losses
on non-current financial assets of RMB11.9 million in the Year.
The increase in staff costs and related expenses and arrangement
fees for banking facilities for the three new plants also led to the

increase.
Finance costs

Finance costs were increased by approximately 20% to
approximately RMB157.6 million for the Year (2013: RMB131.2
million) mainly due to the increase in average loans and

borrowings in 2014 in financing our working capital needs.
Profit for the Year and the net profit margin

During the Year, our Group recorded profit for the year of
approximately RMB224.6 million (2013: RMB130.6 million)
while the net profit margin improved to approximately 4.6%
(2013: 3.3%). Such improvement was mainly attributable to
(i) the release in production capacities of our headquarters and
manufacturing bases and increase in orders due to the successful
implementation of strategies in the adjustment of marketing
models and expansion of sales channels; and (ii) an improvement
in our gross margin by implementing energy conservation and
consumption reduction technical measures as well as internally

enhancing our cost control.

A

7 BB 32

AAEJE 2 AT BB 2 A9 N R #258,700,000 00 > B8
TE - ZAERE N A425% (TF — A AR
181,600,0007T ) » 1fif A< 48 [H] 2 17 B BH 324 4 265
ZESHHI ETFE453% (B =4 :14.6%) °
B LT Ty F Bl A AR R 2 R IR AR
#10,100,0007C & FF i B 4 Rl & 2 (B ks RN R
#11,900,0007C T 2 » B TR K2 AR B8 B =2 38 in LA
e 1 =[] 30 55 2 BOSRA T Al 2 2 Bk 4 ) R S B
o

St 5 AR

AR B OB B N AR B A20% F £ N R K
157,600,000 ( — & — =4+ AR #131,200,000
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s current
and quick ratios as at 31 December 2013 and 2014:

o LI o B o3 B

$ 5 1K Dt 43 A
Y2 0 B 3k B s 3

TR A EEN T =N D F—PULE T
H=+—HZ B M E) LR A5

2014 2013

—F M4 —F—-=
Current Ratio (Note) T R (M) 0.80 0.75
Quick Ratio (Note) M) LR (M) 0.62 0.59

Note:

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current
assets and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end
of the year.

During the Year, our Group has started the process of developing a
commercial property for resale. This property under development
led to the increase in current assets and thus improved current
ratio.

Excluding this impact, both ratios remained steady in the Year.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2013 and 2014:

T B bl 28 LUAR & 2 Vi ) A B DA ) B AR R
o

T He AR DUAR K 2 Ui B Y A LA B 2 R DAL
B & AR S

JRAAE B A5 M 2 BA 46 3% R — JH T A 4 S DUAE
Ty o G2 R R v ) SRR SR B A 0> R L
Ui B LU A TR -

R 5% R AR > 5% WY L SRR A A R B RRE
ffib R

TRBIIALED F - =R T NE
H=t—HzZafElx:

2014 2013
- S 11 £ =
Gearing ratio (Note) BB (HaE) 40.4% 55.1%

Note:

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases divided by total assets and multiplied by
100%.

In the Year, the Group has repaid more long-term loans and
borrowings which led to the improvement in gearing ratio.

A L R DL R DA R Rl AT BR DL A
{H T3 LA 100% 5154 -

MAERE  AREMEF L RUERLER &
HAR R Bk

15



16

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2014 F#f

Management Discussion and Analysis

o LI i e g3

Inventory Turnover Days 17 8 5

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s N RMIIALEHEE —F — ZHF R _F —UHE
inventory turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2013 = H =+ — H 1L 4F FF 2 A7 & J&] i HA A 22
and 2014:

2014 2013
SEoNE % =
Inventory Turnover Days (Note) 176 R () 48 44

Note: Mt it -

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the  £7 & J&l#8  LAFHR B4 0T 2 W) S 4 2 A7 B &5 61
beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the periods P O LUAE A 2 88 A JE 8 1 ofe PA36S H B -
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Inventories balance as at the respective years ended 31 December Az — & — =4 — & P4+~ H =+ —H
2013 and 2014 represents our raw materials, work in progress and || & 45 ir > 77 15 4568 5 JERE R - 78 B 5 % ok

the unsold finished goods. B o
Inventory turnover days remained steady in both years. A7 308 w0 T A AF AR RS o
Debtors’ Turnover days E Wi M 2 20 B 0

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s debtors | L f 7| AL FEKE — X — =S4 K — & — U4

turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2013 and - — F = - — [ || 4F J&F 2 JE i JIE 230 S A o5
2014:

2014 2013
- S 1! f4 2 TR AR
Debtors’ Turnover Days (Note) JRE A B SRR BRI (B ) 96 99

Note: B aE
Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning JARE WA R i R 0 DA A0 o 0 2 2 28 o IR A T R A

and ending balance of trade and bills receivables for the periods divided by — # &% i & T ¥ 8Bk LA A 2 8 SR 1 e LA36S H 515 -
turnover during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Debtors’ turnover days remained steady in both years. R iz B 2 ST B U 7 T B 4 B A R RS E o
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Creditors’ Turnover days

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s creditors
turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2014:

o LI B o3 B

VBB oF W ok i e 39

TRESNAEREE —F - = F R F-F
T A= HAR AR AT IR G AR I

2014 2013
- 2l ' E:: 2 e £
Creditors” Turnover Days (Note) JEAS B R FE AR (MY 7t ) 85 65

Note:
Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the

beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The implementation of more strengthened payment control led to

the increase in creditors’ turnover days.

Cash flow

The table below summarises our Group’s cash flow during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014:

Wit -
U 2 M 00 000 09 2 5 5 M 1 3T

o B8 45 i 2 T BUSK DUAE TR 2 B 65 A 48 4 1 9 LU
365H G -

B il TR R 04 A R A MBS IR K R R A T v
Jine

TRMEAEEEE T - = R A
ToA=ZT - HIEFEZ B SR E

2014 2013
“ER A —E =
RMB’million RMB’million
AN RH & T A R T
Net cash generated from REIE B T 13 B AR
operating activities 1,094.5 69.8
Net cash used in investing activities 5% &1 E i FH B4 TR A (545.1) (196.1)
Net cash generated from Pl V5 ) T 45 B < VR AR
financing activities (485.2) 103.6

We generally finance our operations through a combination
of shareholders’ equity, internally generated cash flows, bank
borrowings and our cash and cash equivalents. Our Directors
believe that on a long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from
operations and, if necessary, additional equity financing or bank
borrowings.

AR T — i 0 A T ARORE 2~ R EREE AR 2 B U
BRATEERALE B e B EY AR
EHRMES -HHMFE REMSAEE R
B & S B X (WA ) RO A B
B ERAT M
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Capital expenditures

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayment. During the Year, our Group’s
capital expenditures were approximately RMB294.7 million
(2013: RMB307.1 million). The significant capital expenditures
during the Year were mainly for the acquisition of plant and
equipment for the Guangdong Sanshui plant and the three new
plants at Sichuan Chengdu, Jiangxi Yichun and Henan Qinyang.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2014, our Group’s loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB2,003.1 million (31 December
2013: RMB2,282.7 million).

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2014, the banking facilities of our Group
amounted to approximately RMB3,235.9 million (31 December
2013: RMB3,455.3 million), of which approximately RMB2,130.6
million were utilised (31 December 2013: RMB2,401.4 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties.
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, our Group did not provide any guarantee
in respect of liabilities of any company not being a member of our
Group. Our Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2014.

Foreign Currency Risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction
imposed by the PRC government. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars.

B A X

CEAR B ST A AR E Y 2 RS SRR I TE AT
P4 o WA AR i > AN 2 A B S A 2 KRB
294,700,0000C ( & — =4 : A\ R #307,100,000

) o AR 22 KB AR B S T B M i R R
BV RS R AN N S ST RN e
AR R 2 W M R A e

sk K i &

R oFE—WE+F A=+ —H > REHZEK
Ko & 4 B N R 2,003,100,00000 ( & — =4

+—H=+—H: ANR%2,282,700,0007C) °
BRATf5 B RE I B s R

R oFE—WE+A=+—H> REHZHT
5 B4 E 4 A N R #3,235,900,0000C ( & —=

F+_HA=+—H: ANR%3,455300,0007C) > H
&) N R #52,130,600,0000C ( —F— =4+ " A
=+—H: AR ¥2,401,400,0007T) C 8 -

Slf 416 SRAT 5 LR BE 2 Bl 8 7 A AR
228 fL 1
REF—AE A =t H o AR AT

TSl FE A S B AL B 8 W 2 8 W) 2 R AR AT 3
R ZF—WELZH=+—H > AEH I &
EUNERSEE

Bb s JE B
AE%I#TE%E@%&%%@ o T HE H e
2B Fp B L RE B R o R AR B 2 E S

@T*ILJ‘&$E@I%E&%%UW$I
5 T T Hb R I 2 e RN R DAL 2 B ETHE
1 A7 365 51 R LR o S0 2 B T B DA T K R TRt
{H o
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings
from banks. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates profile of the
Group’s loans and borrowings are disclosed in note 27(c) to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 29 of the consolidated financial statements, the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

o LI o B o3 B

A 3R A B

AL 2 F) 2R F B AR B ERAT A B e TR B A
R [ 5 R g 2 B0 I A AR 4 I JFUR 2 B
BT | RN/ S (£ B 9 o N ST =
Te A B8 2 ) S8 M D A 4F i 4% B B 705 4 3R B
27(c) I 5% -

5 5 )l b

AR F 2 A5 B R B T A 32 B B Al I UK
T T O E R B W R E R
FEIRFR o BLAE T B HAU B WSORRIETTT 7 > 38 T BEOR AR
B — E SR BT A R AT (R B A5 B R AG -

WA B 55 R R B RE29 Bt A 2 WA Hh 2 B 5 4f
PRAb > A 42 ) 37 08 £ (3 AE o] LAt 48 O > Bl A 4R
R = A2 R R 2 AR R B o

i B & & B

U B < g A A I S R AT B 2 B
A JEURR o A5 B 2 BOR TG € W) B 45 B B T R
Lo S A B 3H 2 UL - Lhwke DR AR 45 78 2 B 4 fok
5 B M T I M AR 3 A 5 R > DURE AT
MMk REZ BB EETK-
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Newly established associate

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 April
2014, Guangdong Xingfa has established a non-wholly owned
entity with 80% stake, namely VL PG £ 5 B 67 455 i i A PR 2
A (in English for identification only, Jiangxi Province Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.) (“Jiangxi Jingxing”).
20% of the equity interest of Jiangxi Jingxing was owned by J&
M 588 SR A R /A R (in English for identification only,
Guangzhou Jingxing Construction Technology Ltd.). According
to the contractual arrangement that determines the direction of
the relevant activities of Jiangxi Jingxing, the Group does not
have rights sufficient to give it power to control over Jiangxi
Jingxing. Thus the Group deemed Jiangxi Jingxing as an
associate for accounting purpose notwithstanding the fact that
the Group holds 80% stake in Jiangxi Jingxing. This associate
is principally engaged in the business of production and sales of
aluminium panels and systems, storing, refurbishing and sales of
old aluminium panels and systems and its pre-assembly business,
repairing of panel systems, and the production, alteration and
repairing of construction panel systems and related products.

PROSPECTS

Following the successful capacity expansion plan at the three new
plants in Sichuan Chengdu, Jiangxi Yichun and Henan Qinyang,
this organic growth tied perfectly with the demand growth ahead
to extend our market coverage from South-East China to also
South-West and South-East China. These plants will become the
critical income sources of the Group in the future. Riding on these
powerful engines, our profit and market share will be increased in
the long-run.

In line with our prudent approach and in view of the fragile global
economic environment, strengthening balance sheet management,
optimizing product mix and enhancing operating efficiency are
still our main focuses in 2015. Meanwhile, aiming to develop
Xingfa as an all-rounded and one-stop aluminium service
provider, we are actively looking for business opportunities for
both semi-upstream and downstream merger and acquisitions
in China. Besides, the establishment of the newly established
associate allows the Group to open up the business opportunities

of construction aluminium panel business.

A

BB 3 2 Wk 4 W
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VLV SR A s N | o I N Bl E B F R
FE B B G RO S R A A O R Bl
R BRI B R S R HTE A R MR R
o DL R S M R A IS A L R A A

E i o

Hil

TP B AE DY ) SR ~ Y EL AR KT R 0 B Y =
TR BN E R R R T AR > b R R R o8 AT
AEBAM BT 85 B SR L 4 T B
5 7B 7Y R M R M A AR T R IR - W2
Jig 55 H AR A2 A S T 2 T B AR o MR R %
S 58 S F7 > R AR 4 0 BAM 69 i A K i 8
e

2 R AN 10 o DA LB R e 55 B0 4 R AR R
S FRAMH A — AR AT T A v o
R 2 B AL AL R e B AR - B
(7] - oy i DL 3 o o 2 T B — o =X R A IR B
B 78 > AP IE B MR 7S [ ) €8 M b 9T TS O
0 2 T o e A o RRSE R AR SE 2 BB N T AR R
9 T R B AR SE T SE IO



B 2% En 2 AR A BR 2 &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3R Annual Report 2014

Directors and Senior Management

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Libin, aged 42, became the Chairman of the Company
since 8 September 2011. Mr. Liu obtained a Degree of Executive
Master of Business Administration from South China University
of Technology and has held various senior positions in financial,
marketing and governmental fields. Mr. Liu had been the vice
section chief (@l #}{=%) of finance division of Department of
Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province,
finance manager and deputy general manager of Sinomart
Development Co. Limited (8% [ BX A R/ w])
general manager of the finance department of Goldsland Holdings
Company Limited (& B # A BR A A]) , deputy chairman of
Guangdong Advertisement Co., Ltd. ( & # % & % 4 BR A &) and
chairman of Guangdong Guangxin PACO Technology Co., Ltd.
(B AD = B AT R A /), a subsidiary of Guangdong
(o A& BT P LA A IR
7)) . Mr. Liu is the chairman of the board of Guangdong Xingfa
Ltd. (& SB35 85 2645 fR X &) (“Guangdong
Xingfa”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

, director and

Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.

Aluminium Co.,

Mr. Luo Su, aged 76, is the honorable chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and founder of the Group. He has over
20 years of experience in the aluminium profile industry. He is
responsible for the overall management, operations, financial
aspects, corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Luo
is qualified as an T.ZE#ZEJEHT (industrial economist) based on
his previous experience with Nanhai Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory. Mr. Luo was certified as an outstanding entrepreneur of
private enterprise by the People’s Government of Foshan City
in 2003, an outstanding entrepreneur by the China Non Ferrous
Metals Industry Association in 2005 and received an outstanding
Guangdong patent award for the patent titled # 7 4 Jml %5 ¢ [F] 7K
T T $5% 26 (aluminium alloy flat ingot horizontal heat-top
casting device) in 2005. Mr. Luo is a deputy to the 12th Session of
the People’s Congress of Foshan City for a term of five years from
2003 to 2008. Mr. Luo Su is the father-in-law of Mr. Liao Yuqing,
an executive Director.

HELAFHHAEMAR
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Mr. Luo Riming, aged 58, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
procurement and utilisation of equipment and infrastructure for
the business of the Group. Mr. Luo is also responsible for the
procurement of raw materials and the assessment and selection
of suitable suppliers. He has over 15 years of experience in the
aluminium profile industry. Mr. Luo joined the Group since the
establishment of the Group in 1980s. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Luo has worked at Nanhai Hardware Factory (township
enterprise), Nanhai Power Supply Bureau, Nanzhuang Electric
Appliance and Furniture Factory, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Profiles Factory and Xingfa Group. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economic management by the Guangdong Radio & TV

University in 1998.

Mr. Liao Yuqing, aged 49, is an executive Director. He is also the
supervisor of the sales and marketing department in charge of the
sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible for
the planning, development, implementation and evaluation of the
marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group in
January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between

1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of China
Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the son-in-law of

Mr. Luo Su, the chairman of the Group and an executive Director.

Mr. Dai Feng, aged 43, is the executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since 8 September 2011. Mr.
Dai held the qualifications of an accountant and auditor, China
Certified Tax Agent, International Certified Internal Auditor and
Master of International Public Accountant of Australia (18 K 7
BN @ AT (“MIPA”). Mr. Dai has extensive experience in
accounting and auditing fields. He was the head of the supervising
and auditing department and the finance department of J& /I
FWOIR E AL LB AR A F (unofficial English name being
“Guangzhou Yang Cheng Zhao Ye Enterprise Group Ltd.”),
seconded finance controller of Guangzhou Lingnan International
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. (B M 5 R BIFE & EEH A RA
F]) , assistant to the head of finance department of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd. (5 5 & J& 7 8 i 45 W A fR &
7)) and manager of finance department of Guangdong Guangxin
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (J&H B EHIRARAA)
Mr. Dai is currently the supervisor of FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. ({#f
Wk R AL B I A PR A ) | a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai is also as a director and chief financial
officer of Guangdong Xingfa.
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Mr. Law Yung Koon, aged 58, is an executive director. He is
responsible for the sales and marketing of our products in overseas
market. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general
manager of Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles Company Limited,
which was the sole distributor of the Group in Hong Kong and

Macau and one of the suppliers of aluminium ingots.

Mr. Wang Zhihua, aged 44, is an executive Director. Prior to
joining the Group in January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang
worked at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou
Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in statistics from the Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang was certified as a
securities agent for the period from September 2001 to September
2004 by the Securities Association of China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Shengguang, aged 51, is a non-executive Director of
the Company since 8 September 2011. Mr. Chen held a master’s
degree in Zhongnan University of Economics and Law and
is a certified public accountant in the PRC. He has extensive
experience in accounting and finance fields. Mr. Chen was the
deputy general manager of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. &
Exp. Corporation (J& W & 7N & BH¥E/2F]) , the head of finance
department, the head of clearing centre and the deputy chief
accountant of Guangdong Foreign Trade Group Co., Limited
(FERBFEHINEEEMARAF) . Mr. Chen is currently the
chief accountant cum head of finance department of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Limited (& 5% F& 37 5 I 4 B A FR
/A #)) and a director of FSPG Hi-Tech CO., Ltd. (fffi 111 {# 22 &}
FEE WA RATR ), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chen was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 26 August 2011.

HELAFHHAEMAR
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He obtained the lawyer
qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong Provincial
Department of Justice in June 1989. He has been a practicing
lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been a partner of Goldsun
Law Firm ([ {5 B & 8 6l 95 85 J7T) from 1998 to 2011. Mr.
Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the Department of Justice
of Guangdong Province in June 1989 and obtained — & Hii
%% (Third Grade Lawyer) from the Department of Personnel
of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated from the
Political Education Department of South China Normal University
(F#E R #E K £2) in 1986. He has been granted the (fAfifE=F
R ILHEE E S R ) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities
Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and China
Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996, the {fAlifi¢ 4L 44
B b S MR e IR AR &) (Certificate of Engaging
in Delimitation of Property Rights of Collective Science and
Technology Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic of
China and the State-owned Asset supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council in 1998, and the { LT/ A
WL S BE 45 2695 ) (Certificate of Completion of Training
on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management
of Fudan University jointly in 2001. Currently, Mr. Chen has been
a partner of Guangdong Junhou Law Firm ( 5 3 H J= {3 fiff 25 8
B .

Mr. Junius K. Y. Ho, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He is a Senior Partner
of Messrs. K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries where he is the
head of the Litigation and Commercial Department. He is also the
Principal Representative of the Guangzhou Office. Having studied
at Anglia Ruskin University in the United Kingdom (formerly
known as Chelmer Institute of Higher Education), Junius
obtained his Bachelor of Law Degree in 1984. He then joined the
University of Hong Kong for the Post-graduate Certificate in Laws
study. Junius was further awarded with the honorary degree of
Doctor of Laws by Anglia Ruskin University in 2011.

A

BT ES

BB e sop o i R FNAEZH LA
BREBARNFBILIFPTESR  — LI
N R A TR D i R G R L 3 A
FoBRSeA B — UL =S Jy o BB A -
USR5 —— 4 I A 5 T A2 5
BEN —IUNIUVERN A EZAE 5 R A& w3k B
Al > HAR A — JUIL LSRR 75 R A AN S = #)
TR o BROTAE I — JU/\ 7S 47 B2 26 A 2 g Al 2
REBUGHE R R — UL RE R Kb
i o B M B E S e (R SRRk
B EMEET) R — UL AL E -
22 N R U [ o 2 5 il 0 % 5 B B A
B B G (AR AR R S
ERREHEREE) > R T T PR
I BB B2 B AR BB A PHLER g g R
2 w8 7 o B 4 6 ) o BRI SE AR B
HERERRMEL RSB A -

2 ek 5 S2i s BB L LT
6 2% (5 A 5 R 37 BT 30 o 0 (R
AL 5 42 5 A+ B A P 2R - AR
I £ A 2 17 o 0 95 2 A
7 4 AR R B AN 5 20 % B B ) B4R -
A — LA DO A B o AR R o 2 M
T A 5 SRR o I 4
(A1 1 2 48— 2 0 A R A B
B LB -



B 2% En 2R A BR 2 A XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3R Annual Report 2014

Directors and Senior Management

Junius was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He
was subsequently admitted in Singapore and England and Wales
in 1995 and 1997 respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a
China-Appointed Attesting Officer.

Junius has over 20 years of legal experience and is committed in
serving the community and contributing to the business economic
co-operation between Hong Kong and the Mainland. Being
the Past President and Council Member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong, he actively participates in its current affairs. Apart
from serving his own legal profession, he also serves various

government and advisory boards as follows:—

1. Arbitrator of Zhengzhou Arbitration Commission and
South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration);

2. Committee Member of Professional Services Advisory

Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council;

3. Chairman of Product Eco-responsibility Appeal Board
Panel;

4. Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Tsuen;

5. Chairman of the 21st Term of Tuen Mun Rural Committee;

6. Ex Officio Member of Tuen Mun District Council;

7. Ex Officio Executive Member of the 33rd Executive

Committee of Heung Yee Kuk;

8. Member of the Managing Trustees of the Charitable Trust
of Tsing Shan Monastery;
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9. Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
from 2011 to 2015;

10. Director of Butterflyers Association Limited;
11. Public Relations Director of NT Concern Group; and

12. Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene
Articles Tribunal.

Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He is an
associate member of various professional organisations, namely
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained
his master’s degree in professional accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of
experience in the accounting, banking and finance sectors and
currently is working as the General Manager of Viking Logistics
Limited, a private company which is an airfreight operator and
transportation company. Mr. Lam was also the president of Dragon
Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber
International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong Kong
in 2005. From 16 February 2009 to 30 September 2013, Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of Sino-Life Group
Limited, a company the shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. From Aug 2013 to June
2014, Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of
Gamma Logistics Group, a company the shares of which are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited and Synertone Communication

Corporation.
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Mr. Liang Shibin, aged 74, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 14 December 2013. He completed the
programme of Nonferrous Metal and Heat Treatment in the
Department of Special Metallurgy from "' 7 8%/ 2 B (unofficial
English translation being Central South Institute of Mining
and Metallurgy) (now known as "1 Fd K#£ (Central South
University)). From 1965 to 1982, Mr. Liang had worked in the
special workshop of HALH#E & 4 il L& (unofficial English
translation being Northeast Light Alloy Processing Factory) first
as technician and later as engineer and specialized in atomic
reactor technical matters. From 1982 to 1992, Mr. Liang had
worked in & & A 48 i Tk (unofficial English translation
being Guangdong Nonferrous Metal Processing Factory) first as
workshop manager, and later as deputy factory general manager
and then factory general manager. From 1988 to 1992, he also
served as the president of J& 3 # &8 %! 41 1t & (unofficial English
translation being Guangdong Aluminium Profile Association).
From 1992 to 2003, he first served as the general manager of #t
I %% B #3262 A (unofficial English translation being Hangzhou
Hongchang Aluminium Company) and later as the deputy general
manager and chief engineer of i #5247\ A (unofficial English
translation being Ningbo Aluminium Company). From 2003 to
2011, he served as a senior consultant of f 4 & [ %5 58 2E I 1o
A PR F] (Fujian Minfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (a company listed
on Small and Medium-sized Enterprise Board of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code: 002578). Mr. Liang has been acting as
an independent director of &% & [ 4% 88 2 M A PR A (Fujian
Minfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) since April 2008.
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Alternative Director to LIU Libin

Mr. Wong Siu Ki, aged 39, is the Alternative Director to Mr.
Liu Libin. He has extensive experience in accounting, finance
and capital market fields. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong
worked in an international accounting firm from 1997 to 2003.
Subsequently, between 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wong was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer cum Company Secretary to Eagle
Brand Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Singapore. From August 2007 to April
2010, he was the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary. From April 2010 to December 2012 Mr. Wong was
appointed a non-executive Director of the Company. Since
December 2012 Mr. Wong was appointed as alternative director
to LIU Libin, who is the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company. Since December 2013, Mr. Wong was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Major Holdings Limited,
a company listed on GEM board of the Stock Exchange (8209.
HK).

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy with First
class honors from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants in England and Wales.
Senior Management

Mr. Lin Yan, aged 46, is Vice President of the Company and was
appointed on 26 August 2011. Mr. Lin is responsible for the sales
operation of the Company. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium,
Mr. Lin worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals
(FERE L&

, with more than 20 years of experience

& Minerals Import & Export Group Corporation
e 7 A 1T A A D)
in international trade. Mr. Lin held a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from Jinan University and was awarded a certificate
of Economist by Ministry of Human Resources of the PRC in
1996. He is persuing the Degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration at South China University of Technology since
2010. Mr. Lin was also appointed as Vice General Manager of
Guangdong Xingfa.
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Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 46, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and is responsible for production management of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group in October 1993,
Mr. Liu worked at Nanhai Guangdong Cable Factory Co., Ltd.
from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu was granted a bachelor’s degree in
engineering by the Guangdong Mechanics Institute in 1991. He
was certified as assistant engineer in 1993 by the Nanhai City
Science Technology Committee and certified as engineer in 2001
by the Foshan City Human Resources Bureau.

Mr. Wu Xikun, aged 43, is the deputy general manager for
technology and deputy chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Wu
heads the research and development department and is responsible
for the Group’s production technology systems, development of
new products branding. When Mr. Wu first joined the Group in
July 1994, he worked at Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory where he was a technician of the quality control section.
Mr. Wu was granted a bachelor’s degree in material science and
engineering from the Guangdong University of Technology in
1994. Mr. Wu was nominated for the Top 10 Outstanding Youth of
Foshan City in 2006.

Mr. Du Jinhong, aged 59, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and is head of the internal audit department. Prior to
joining the Group in 1999, Mr. Du was the director (designate)
of the finance department and chief financial officer of Xingfa
Group from 1999 to 2005. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Du worked at
Nanhai Hengxing Architectural Ceramics Factory (1992 to 1993)
and Nanzhuang Town Economy Development Head Office (1993
to 1999). He was certified as assistant accountant by the Nanhai
City Science Technology Committee in 1993. Mr. Du holds a
diploma in economics management granted by the Guangdong
Administrative University in 1997.
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Mr. Guan Dubiao, aged 44, is the deputy general manager and
head of finance department of Guangdong Xingfa. Mr. Guan is
currently the council member of Foshan City CPA Institute. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career in
Foshan Nanzhuang Economic Development Company in 1991.
Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as several important financial
positions within the Group companies of Foshan Nanzhuang
Economic Development Company. Mr. Guan joined the Group in
1999 as deputy head of finance department and Chief Accountant
and subsequently promoted as head of finance department. He
was further promoted as deputy general manager since September
2011.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Ka Wai, Kelvin is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Tam is a solicitor of Leung & Lau, a law firm
practising in Hong Kong laws. He has experience in corporate
finance and compliances matters for the listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Tam was admitted as solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in 2013.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collected referred to as the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 14 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 63
of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: HK$0.05) held by shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 12 June 2015.

The final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong Dollars and will
be paid on or around 26 June 2015 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 12
June 2015.

3R Annual Report 2014

Report of the Directors
PN

PSR PE A RA A ([ALF ) #HEg ([E
H ) BHCLHGE > B AN T LB A R (B
M IALE D) RE_F—WET_H=T—HI
L2 KR AR S B R

TR

ARNF 2 FEEB B EHER - AL H Ak 8
o8 ) 2 BB ZERS TR WO A5 A S R M s 2 T
iF14

REEFPE L S HIREER - A
ST 2 A VRN S KA ) o

ES Vil

AEEBE_F -EF A=t HILFEEZ
BN F R HA ARG E -

A

HHERMP F-HEASATZAH (EMR)
ZEHNAN TR H A M 2 AR AR IR E %
—W4E+ = H = — H 1L AR E 2 R I B
H0.09%5 70 ( ZF — =4 1 0.05#70) ©

AR BB LA TE IR A > A0 =& — TAE N A
ZANHEEE MR S F - RAENA T H (2
W T 2 50 A O 7 R 4 i 2 SRR A

31



32

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2458 % 2 iR AR A
Annual Report 2014 F

Report of the Directors
ol

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 29 May 2015,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 27 May 2015 to Friday, 29 May 2015 (both days
inclusive). During such period, no transfer of the shares in the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the attendance
in the annual general meeting, all transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 26 May 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five years is set out on page 164.
LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 22 in notes to the consolidated financial

statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 12 in notes to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 26 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme”) on 29 February 2008. The Scheme became effective
on 31 March 2008. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Participants under the Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest; any suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants of the Group or any Invested Entity; any persons or
entities that provide research development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; any holders of
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and any other groups or classes of participants whom the

Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group must not exceed 41,800,000 Shares,
being 10% of Shares in issue on the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) has been obtained, and which must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

No share option was granted by the Company since its adoption.
As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 41,800,000 Shares, which represents
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of listing of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange and as at the date of this report.
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued Shares from time to time.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be
such price as the board of Directors (“Board”) may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the option but the
subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of the Board approving the grant of
an option, which must be a business day (“Offer Date”); (ii) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing immediately after the business day on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted in accordance with
the Scheme (“Commencement Date”) and expiring on such date
of the expiry of the option as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and which shall not exceed ten years from
the Commencement Date but subject to the provisions for early

termination thereof as set out in the Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years

commencing on 31 March 2008.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in note 26 in notes to the consolidated financial

statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies,
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB614,472,000 (2013:
RMB635,091,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 19.6% (2013: 18.7%) of the
Group’s turnover where sales to the largest customer accounted
for 7.8% (2013: 6.2%) of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 57.7% (2013: 63%)
of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 37.9% (2013: 45%)
of the Group’s total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIAO Yuqing

Mr. DAI Feng (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHEN Shengguang
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin

Alternative Directors to Mr. Liu Libin
Mr. WONG Siu Ki

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
each of Mr. CHEN Shengguang, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu and Mr. LIANG Shibin will retire from the office of Director
by rotation and each of them, being eligible, will offer himself for

re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
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Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming, Mr. LIAO Yuqing and
Mr. WANG Zhihua, has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 March 2008 and their respective term of appointment has been
renewed for a further three years commencing on 1 March 2011
and thereafter for a further three years commencing on 1 March
2014.

Mr. LAW Yung Koon has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 May 2009 and his term of appointment has been renewed for a

further three years commencing on 1 May 2012.

Mr. CHEN Shengguang has been appointed as the non-executive
Director for a fixed term of three years commencing from 8
September 2011 and renewed for three years commencing on 8
September 2014.

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. LAM Ying
Hung Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of two years
commencing from 1 March 2014.

Mr. LIANG Shibin has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 14
December 2012.

The director’s fee of Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy has been
increased from HK$150,000 per annum to HK$180,000 per annum
with effect from 1 January 2015.

The director’s fee of each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
and Mr. LIANG Shibin has been increased from HK$120,000 to
HK$150,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 30 of the annual report.
Human resources

As at 31 December 2014, our Group employed a total of
approximately 5,714 full time employees in the PRC which
included management staff, technicians, salespersons and workers.
In 2014, our Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees were approximately RMB420.2 million, represented
8.7% of the turnover of our Group. Our Group’s emolument
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart
from the provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong
employees) or state-managed retirement pension scheme (for the
PRC employees) and medical insurance, discretionary bonuses and
employee share options are also awarded to employees according
to the assessment of individual performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the paragraph headed “Connected transactions”
in this report, no Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at

31 December

2014

R =2 — P4

Company/Name of Numberand +-H=+—H

associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities IFi) 8 8 77 i I

A2 w4 R HREH 24 W 2r B H BOE A4k

Company LUO Su Beneficial owner 56,857,200 13.60%
AT i3 73 Hia A A ordinary Shares
56,857,200/
- 48 i

Company LUO Riming Beneficial owner 51,813,700 12.40%
NN #&H Ha A A ordinary Shares
51,813,700/
-4 i

Company LIAO Yuqing Beneficial owner 48,200,100 11.53%
b | B HaAa AN ordinary Shares

48,200,1004%
it
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2014
R =4
Company/Name of Number and +Z-H=1—H
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities [Fi] 2 5 27 o I
A2 ) T T 4 LA g w o B H R [ifid:A
Company LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,050,000 4.56%
A # e Ha A A ordinary Shares
19,050,000/
Interest of spouse 1,719,000 0.41%
Fic 18 1 4 ordinary Shares
1,719,000/
3 Ik
Company WONG Siu Ki Beneficial owner 50,000 0.01%
NN K HamEAa A ordinary Shares
50,000/
7 e

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such

rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any
competing business against the Company or any of its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED
TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS
PURSUANT TO PART XV OF THE SFO

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons, other than a
Director or the executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which are required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position
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Percentage
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the same class of
securities as
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iR = F— 4

Number and +=ZH=4+—H

Name of entities Capacity class of securities [Fi] 2 5 27 o I

T4 54 WHREE RER H 4k

Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 125,360,000 29.99%
T vk B R i A PR A T Ham AN ordinary Shares
125,360,000/
7

JEE SR T SR A 1 A PR Interest of controlled 125,360,000 29.99%
corporation ordinary Shares
2 P 1 RE AR 125,360,000/

JEREH N RBUN B A & E & Interest of controlled 125,360,000 29.99%

EHEEG

corporation

32 35 I RE 4R

ordinary Shares
125,360,000/
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Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31
December 2014, no other person had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A.

The following entities are connected parties of the A.
Company and had continuing connected transactions with
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014:

Name of the entity
AR

B b 30 Bt T3 5 7 AR 28 ) e H M gk T 2 i
73~ R B e M MR S b 2 M | — B T B R
Gho ik R —EF A =4 — B A A
LR AR T 2 B B AR R R A7 o AR A BT
1713 ZE T Sk A A % ) AR 05 i 2 M B 0 91 S 3361k
11 7 2 5wl Ao

i A2 5

D) /N - N/ Il NG i 2 )
TE—PUAE T = — R AR B R LA
AR [ AT R B AT 5

Connection with the Company

B 2y W 2 B 4R

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall,
Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)

B SR L% A 1 A PRA A
(B BEH N )

Guangxi Laibin Yinhai Aluminium
Co., Ltd. (“LBYH")

JER W A 2 SR BT BB A R A
([ACE i)

Guangzhou Jinxing Construction
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Jingxing™)

B S B SR A BR A F
([ B JH S5 L 1)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the following  B.
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt

continuing connected transactions and are subject to

announcement requirements.

Owned as to 46% by Mr. LUO Su, as to 33% by Mr. LUO Riming and as
to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing. Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and
Mr. LIAO Yuqing is an executive Director.

3l o B R ST AR S AR B WS R R B SRAE HEA 46% - 33% f21% o AR
WESEA - B R WISE A KRB BB K B AT E S

An indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of J& 5 & & £ ik 4 8 A [
/v F (Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.). Guangxin Holdings
owned 100% of Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

JBE SRR B R O A PR W 2 TR R A T o RO P R R
A A R 2 T B R T U B R E A R T o

A shareholder holding 20% equity interests in Jiangxi Province Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd (“VLVH % 3t Bl §7 4 pl B 45
FRZS 7)) (“Jiangxi Jingxing”), a company which the Group holds the
remaining 80% equity interests and accounted for as an associate of the
Group.
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The following is a brief description of the 1. LT BFHEEERZ S Z BN

continuing connected transactions:

ii.

ii.

iii.

Sale of aluminium profiles by
Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa
Curtain Wall

E

R BL 5% i) SL % A 4 0 2 A

Purchase of aluminium alloys by
Guangdong Xingfa from LBYH
JB R BB 1) A2 SR R SR S

Purchase of aluminium profiles by
Guangdong Xingfa from LBYH
Ji R B 5% i) S 2 SR A 4 R A

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangdong
Xingfa sold to Xingfa Curtain Wall certain construction
materials specified by Xingfa Curtain Wall. The
construction materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall
were further processed into window and curtain wall and
sold to its customers.

W E F—AE T A= — B IR E R R L
[e] SEL % 50 il L AR B BRI A 0 2 A T A o BLER R A
W 2 b P T 2 P R R AR 1 LR R A

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangdong Xingfa
sold construction materials to Xingfa Curtain Wall for
approximately RMB120,042,000.
WEZEWAET T =+ — HIRAE R R E
T BLEER A 2 A A N R HF120,042,0007C ©

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangdong
Xingfa purchased aluminium alloys from LBYH.

PBE R —E+ZH =+ — HIRE R B B
1) A€ B St I S B 1

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangdong Xingfa
spent approximately RMB69,349,000 on purchasing
aluminium alloys from LBYH.

WEZZ-WET A=+ HILFE > BR B
#1 N R H169,349,0007C [ 24 2 8% if 1 883 5 4

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangdong
Xingfa purchased aluminium profiles from LBYH.

R E _F—IE T = —H IR FEE R R
1] 2 2 R ¥ 9 8 A o

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangdong Xingfa
spent approximately RMB22,086,000 on purchasing
aluminium profiles from LBYH.

WEZZ-WE+ =+ HILFEE EREEE A
#1 N\ R 122,086,000 i 2 2 4R 16 B B 50 U A1 o
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iv. Granting of a right to use the patents
and other related technologies and
services by Guangzhou Jingxing to
Jiangxi Jingxing

iv. M SR ) VL PG S O SR
T At R B 45 oty B Al 5 F) HEE )

2. Set out below is the annual caps for the year ended 2.
31 December 2014 of each of the continuing

connected transactions set out above:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Guangzhou
Jingxing agreed to grant to Jiangxi Jingxing a right to
use of certain patents and other related technologies and
services.

AR T ZH =+ — B IR R B R
(e T2 1] Y VG S5 SHLASE Hh o P T S0 M) o L Al A B 45 i B e
B I HEA

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no licence and
service fee was paid by Jiangxi Jingxing to Guangzhou
Jingxing.

BWE T -AES A = B IR - VL7 5 B
1] JBE 5% B Ak R AT MR 5 # o

¥l

SRS ST R IR A A B A
SBE - -NE+ZH=+—H
IRAFBEZ AR R

For the year ended

31 December 2014
BEFE—NE

T ZRA=Z4—HIEEE

i. Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to

Xingfa Curtain Wall
i Ji R B % g L % S % 2 A

ii. Purchase of aluminium alloys by Guangdong Xingfa from LBYH

i BEORELEE A R E RIS

iii. Purchase of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa from LBYH

P SR L ) Bl B AR I I A R A

iv. Granting of a right to use the patents and other related technologies

RMB200,000,000
N B #200,000,00070

RMB396,300,000
A R #%396,300,0007C

RMB320,000,000
N B #320,000,00070

RMB1,200,000

and services by Guangzhou Jingxing to Jiangxi Jingxing
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Views of the independent non-executive Directors:

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

(2) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third
parties; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company also confirmed that it has followed the
pricing policies and guidelines when determining the
price and terms of the transactions during the year.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter to the
Board containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
as set out above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which stated that:

a. nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;
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b. for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

c. nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

d. with respect to the aggregate amount
of each of the continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to the
attention of the auditor that causes the
auditor to believe the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in previous announcements dated 29 March
2012, 12 November 2013 and 8 April 2014.

C. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements (except the transactions with
Jiangxi Jingxing) fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, save as set out in
the Company’s corporate governance report in this annual report,
the Company had complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the

Listing Rules for year ended 31 December 2014.
MODEL CODE

The Company adopted a set of codes for securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct for securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.
AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint KPMG as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman

Foshan China, 27 March 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company (“Directors”), save as mentioned in this
Corporate Governance Report, the Company had complied with
all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a set of codes for securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than those set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code™) as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

()

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors.
As at the date of this report, the board of Directors
(“Board”) consisted of the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIAO Yuqing

Mr. DAI Feng

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHEN Shengguang
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin

Alternate Director to Mr. Liu Libin:

Mr. Wong Siu Ki

The executive Directors, with the assistance from
the senior management, form the core management
team of the Company. The executive Directors
have the overall responsibility for formulating the
business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing the plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”).

49

3R Annual Report 2014

Corporate Governance Report

e XSk

B. #HH

()

ERF AR

S B AT ROE AT
EHA M R AR B E g
([FEHg])BHFUTHEE:

BirEF:

BISEwk et (L)
BEmRSCE (KBTI
AR H WIS (FTECH#)
B B

Wk

#& M Sok
FARFEAE

HBITESF
B O S A
B BT

BROBR SE A

i 85k
ARG S A
Tk S A

BRI 2 AL #F
wIRBLEE

TE R B I 2 B R > BUITE
AR 2\ 2 A% 00 8 B R AR » BUAT
3R A5 AR AR B RS SR
BRI B AT R A B
SIS K BCRAT AN ) R LR S
Nl (R TSR ) 2wt 8l e



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2458 % 2 iR AR A

50

Annual Report 2014 F

Corporate Governance Report

e XSk N

(i)

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there
were three full board meetings held, at which:

- the Directors approved the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 and reviewed the results
announcement, annual report and the
circular to the shareholders of the Company
in relation to the general mandate proposal
and re-election of the Directors retiring by
rotation;

- the Directors approved the continuing
connected transactions, details of which are
set out in the Company’s announcement
date 8 April 2014; and

- the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2014 and reviewed the results
announcement.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Board also discussed and approved the
following matters by way of circulation of written
resolutions:

- the Directors approved the issue of profit
alert announcement in respect of the
results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013; and

- the Directors approved the issue of profit
alert announcement in respect of the results
of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2014.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters
to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors
were provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary of
the Company is responsible for keeping minutes for
the Board meetings.
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Attendance record

The following is the attendance record of the board
meetings held by the Board and general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2014:
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Attendance at meeting

LS
Board General
Meetings Meeting
HHGE®R '8
Executive Directors HIT#EF
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman) BISLAR e e (F ) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman) — #ERRSEE (B LIE) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive — # H W6/t (77 B A#)

Officer) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LIAO Yuging BLE B 3/3 1/1
Mr. DAI Feng (Chief Financial W (M E)

Officer) 3/3 1/1
Mr. WANG Zhihua FAEIESA 3/3 1/1
Mr. LAW Yung Koon e S AR 3/3 1/1
Non-executive Director FE B 178 F
Mr. CHEN Shengguang Bl B O e 2k 3/3 1/1
Independent non-executive Wy P ATEFE

Directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BB S 2R 3/3 1/1
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fl B 28 e 4 3/3 1/1
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy R SE A 3/3 1/1
Mr. LIANG Shibin Pt e A 3/3 1/1

According to the code provision A.1.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the year ended 31 December
2014, the Board has held two full board meetings.
Instead, the Board has discussed the company
matters through exchange of emails and informal
meeting among the Directors and obtaining board
consent through circulating written resolutions.
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(iv)

(v)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors have appropriate and sufficient industry
or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders of the Company. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung Andy, has over 22 years in the
accounting, banking and finance sectors and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received their annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent.

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director, is the son-
in-law of Mr. LUO Su, an executive Director and
the Honorary Chairman. Save as aforesaid, there
is no other family relationship between any of the
Directors or chief executive officer. All of them are

free to exercise their independent judgment.

(iv)

(v)
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(vi)  Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Company has provided regular updates to Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and
on the latest business development of the Company.
The Directors confirmed that they have complied
with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in areas related to their
roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance, regulatory updates and
topics related to aluminium industry, and provided

a record of training to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. Mr. LIU Libin is the chairman of the
Board. The chairman of the Board is chiefly responsible
for managing the Board. Mr. LUO Riming is the chief
executive officer of the Company who takes charge of the
supervision of the execution of the policies determined by
the Board. The chairman also chairs the Board meetings
and briefs the Board members on the issues discussed at

the Board meetings.

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code requires the Chairman of the Board to hold
meetings at least annually with the non-executive Director
(including independent non-executive Director) without
the executive Directors present. As Mr. LIU Libin, the
Chairman of the Board, is also an executive Director, the
Company has deviated from this code provision as it is
not applicable. Currently, the Chairman may communicate
with the non-executive Directors on a one-to-one or group
basis periodically to understand their concerns, to discuss
pertinent issues and to ensure that there is access to
adequate and complete information.
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D. INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of
two years commencing from 1 March 2014.

Mr. LIANG Shibin has been appointed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 14 December 2012.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgment on the
issues discussed.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The remuneration committee
comprises Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo,
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy, Mr. LUO Su and Mr. LIU
Libin. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management.

No remuneration committee meeting was held during the
year ended 31 December 2014. It is the Company’s policy
that the remuneration package of each Director and senior
management shall be determined by reference to the duties,
responsibilities, experience and qualifications of each
candidate.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The nomination committee
comprises Mr. LUO Su (Chairman), Mr. LIU Libin, Mr.
HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. LAM Ying Hung
Andy. The primary duties of the nomination committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the nominees
for appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, no nomination

committee meeting was held.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for
re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment. At a full Board meeting held on 27 March
2015, the Directors have reviewed the performance of the
Directors who would retire at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29 May 2015 and approved to
recommend the re-election of such Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board
has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to comply with a
new code provision of the Corporate Governance Code
which was effective from 1 September 2013. The Company
believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
cultural and educational background, race, gender and
other qualities. In informing its perspective on diversity,
the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The composition, experience and balance of skills on
the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains a core of members with longstanding knowledge
of the Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from
time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. The process for the nomination
of Directors is led by the Nomination Committee, which
has been made on a merit basis. The Board will review
the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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G. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION G. BB
For the year ended 31 December 2014, KPMG, the REEZE—-NE+ZH =+—HIEF
Group’s external auditor, provided annual audit services JIE o A 45 [ A0 0 A% R 0 o il S
and other service to the Company. A breakdown of the JIT 1) A > ] AR A AR R A O B B A R
remuneration of the Group’s external auditor is as follows: W5 o A2 B A B AZ SO 2 e BT AN A
For the year ended
31 December 2014
BE_F Mg
+ZHA=+—H
Ak 5 B
(RMB’000)
(ANRWET L)
Audit service 1 BUIR %5
Annual audit services AF B A% SR 5 1,068
Other non-audit services oAt FE 7 A% RS 607
H. AUDIT COMMITTEE H #MZHE®

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the provisions
and recommended practices of the Code of Corporate
Governance. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control systems of the Group. At present, members
of the audit committee comprise Mr. LAM Ying Hung
Andy (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
being the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company and Mr. CHEN Shengguang, a non-executive

Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the audit
committee has held two meetings, at which:

- the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013,
who is of the opinion that such statement complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock
Exchange and legal requirements, and that adequate

disclosures have been made;
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- the audit committee have reviewed the
reasonableness and fairness of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013; and

- the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2014.

The following is the attendance record of the committee
meetings held by the audit committee during the year
ended 31 December 2014:

e XSk N

- EERZEGICHAALFEE
FoZHTHEt—HIEEEY
FRAE B2 5 2 6 B B P
K

- FNLZ B g O BN R AN
BB LA R E X
—PFENH = HIEAHA 2 K&
FRELE B L -

DRPEE IO TR 0 S E ot S
H = H IR B A 2 th
G

Attendance at

meeting
RS
Mr. CHEN Mo o 8RS 2E 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu {A] 7 2% S A 2/2
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy R S AR 2/2
Mr. CHEN Shengguang B s Ot Se A 2/2
DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ L. 3 55 B A% BOhm e a2
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.
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e XSk N

J.  INTERNAL CONTROL

With a view to enhancing the Group’s internal control
system, the Group’s internal audit department has
conducted a review on the Group’s policy on fixed assets,

inventory and trade receivables.

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the
Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board will conduct periodical review
on the progress of the improvement and enhancement with
an effort to enhance the internal control measures of the

Group.

K. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance
functions in accordance with code provision D3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and has reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance, has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code during the year as well as the disclosures in this

Corporate Governance Report.
L. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Tam Ka Wai as its
company secretary who is not an employee of the
Company. In delivering his service as company secretary
of the Company, Mr. Tam has direct contact with Mr.
Dai Feng (an executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer) and Mr. Wong Siu Ki (alternate Director to Mr.
Liu Libin). Mr. Tam has confirmed that for the year under
review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training.

J.

P B

Ty IR AR B 2 R B P R AR
TN 0 2 A% BF'?EJLIZIS%I%%E%IEQE‘
e B T 22 o B W IR i 2 BOHEEEAT AR o

ARG MG E AN FZ AR
B M A AR o I I E AR R R
TH R s AL AR > BN R AR 4R B 2 A
PR it -

1 36 B 16 W hE

R R IE A 2 A S B 2 SF R S
D3. M B E A EE IR W EFBH AL
A AR OB T 1 2 BUR KRR
(b T W5 B N o A T 2 B e A
i o8 i DS R~ NN R AS R
FRE RS 2 BUR Bw R 5 DL s B A A
A A4 FE B S A S TR S B 21 UL O 4
B SEE S 3

A

A0 A B AT R f e A (CHAE JE AR 24 )
BE)AHARRE - RIEAALRIZA
) b i AR R I B IR > R ST AR T R I AR
Sedo b (BUAT HE SR M B AR D) MR B
S (RSS2 B ) - e T
AR LA [E] R AF 3R R D IR 15/ E Z AR
RS



B 2% En 2 AR A BR 2 &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requistionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business, which is presently situated at
Unit No. 5, 6th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Any shareholder enquiry may be
directed to the Board through the Company Secretary by
sending to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.

3R Annual Report 2014

Corporate Governance Report
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There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put
forward proposals at the general meeting under the
Company’s articles of association or under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for any business specified in such written

requisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin

Chairman

Foshan China, 27 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”), set out on pages 63 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

o 1 B 85 e A6 2 M A B e
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 13 B 85 e A 2 M A B e

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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F i 4H i R
For the year ended 31 December 2014
#HE E— S H = H I

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNRIEIR)
2014 2013
SEomE %S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt 7 AR ¥Fic AR ¥F T
Turnover B 3 4,843,915 3,907,457
Cost of sales B LA (4,086,288) (3,397,441)
Gross profit EH 757,627 510,016
Other revenue HoAt 0 45 4 38,465 44,565
Other net loss FoAth s 15 15 A8 4 (6,589) (2,705)
Distribution costs o1 5 AR (102,277) (70,174)
Administrative expenses AT BB =2 (258,676) (181,625)
Profit from operations #8 w M 428,550 300,077
Finance costs T 5 A 5(a) (157,586) (131,185)
Share of loss of an associate JRE A B 2 ) M 4R 15 (1,705) -
Profit before taxation i 8 Wi w6 5 269,259 168,892
Income tax B i 8t 6 (44,653) (38,292)
Profit for the year attributable 72 W) B % JIt 3
to equity shareholders of JRE Al 45 BE i A
the Company 224,606 130,600
Basic and diluted earnings 5 P 56 A T B 2 R
per share (RMB yuan) (ARWTL) 10 0.54 0.31

The notes on pages 70 to 163 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 26(b).

SBT0E163H Z M FE A A BB R B — 0 - AL
)R 2 P R A 4 B i ) 2 B A S S 1 S R

5126(Db) ©
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iy 48 i M At 4 M g %

For the year ended 31 December 2014
#BEF—PES A=A H L EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LUN BRI )
2014 2013
e e 1' E20 e
RMB’000 RMB’000
N R¥Fx AR ¥ET T
Profit for the year A B ¥ A 224,606 130,600
Other comprehensive income AR EHSEEEGEZ
for the year that may be A J3E b 2 T 4 -
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of o e NRILFIE ([ B )
financial statements of operations DIONET 2 A R 2
outside the People’s Republic of China it 58, 7 %
(the “PRC”) 206 (635)
Total comprehensive income for A 2w RE £ B O RE 4%
the year attributable to equity A 2 TR AR AL
shareholders of the Company 224,812 129,965

The notes on pages 70 to 163 form part of these financial  5570% 163 X Bt 5 £ 4% BAHS H R (19 — &R
statements.
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%50 B IR Ol 3R
At 31 December 2014
W ZE—=pESZH=1—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNRIEIR)
2014 2013
e S U3 e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt 7 AR ¥Fic AR ¥F T
Non-current assets I i B as ‘
Property, plant and equipment UESY NS ] 12 1,882,739 1,832,942
Lease prepayments TE A AL 4 13 308,527 363,274
Interest in an associate N TE=E/N fj Z FE 25 15 941 —
Non-current financial assets FE /Jﬁ@J%ﬁ'ﬂ B E 16 = 11,912
Deferred tax assets R S TE 25(b) 39,654 20,995
2,231,861 2,229,123
Current assets W& E
Inventories e 17 631,607 445,701
Trade and other receivables 2T Sy Je oAt JRE e K TE 18 1,538,206 1,252,169
Pledged deposits eI 19 330,214 77,016
Cash and cash equivalents Bl I Bl S 18 20 305,856 240,919
2,805,883 2,015,805
Current liabilities b RER
Trade and other payables B8 5y B A JRE A 3K H 21 1,728,259 833,616
Loans and borrowings %fﬁ&%ﬁ‘ 22 1,723,782 1,786,999
Obligations under finance leases il &l & Z= AT 23 26,212 26,024
Current taxation AP B 18 25(a) 26,119 32,975
3,504,372 2,679,614
Net current liabilities iR B ER R (698,489) (663,809)
Total assets less current liabilities 48 & % i iii B £ (& 1,533,372 1,565,314
Non-current liabilities I B £
Loans and borrowings S M £ 22 279,250 495,690
Obligations under finance leases G B EAT 23 6,314 30,422
Deferred income R SE LA 24 63,847 63,458
349,411 589,570
Net assets & e A 1,183,961 975,744
Capital and reserves i A K il
Share capital A 26 3,731 3,731
Reserves it i 1,180,230 972,013
Total equity HE 45 48 30 1,183,961 975,744

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2015.

Liu Libin
S 37 R
Chairman

EYa

The notes on pages 70 to 163 form part of these financial

statements.

B E-REZH b H g S e i AR

T -

Luo Riming

MEM

Executive Director

HITEF

SET0ZE 163 H 2 Bt ik £ A B4 i 2 1 — &6 4
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Statement of Financial Position

54 5 IR D 2

At 31 December 2014

BZFEESf A =1 —H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LA R HA )
2014 2013
e S U122 R =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt it AR ¥ Fic ANRWTF I
Non-current assets I B E B
Investments in subsidiaries WM E AR Z %G 14 626,654 626,654
Current assets i B & e
Trade and other receivables 22 G Fe Ho Al JRE e 3 IE 18 28,404 28,697
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB EY 20 1,713 925
30,117 29,622
Current liabilities BB
Trade and other payables A8 5y B FoAth I At 3 I 21 38,568 17,454
Net current (liabilities)/assets W (F6]) & T (8,451) 12,168
Total assets less current A 7 WU B £ 1R
liabilities 618,203 638,822
Net assets B A 618,203 638,822
Capital and reserves JB A B ki i
Share capital i@ 26(a) 3,731 3,731
Reserves fitt 4#f 26(a) 614,472 635,091
Total equity RE 25 A4 618,203 638,822

AR -RFEZA L HEE R IR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2015. T gt o
Liu Libin Luo Riming
B 37 3 AW
Chairman Executive Director
FiE HITEH

SRT0E 163 H 2 M ik 7 A BB i 3R B9 — AR 4

The notes on pages 70 to 163 form part of these financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
#HE E— S H = H I

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU RS )
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AR ERR RN
PRC
Share Share Capital Other statutory Exchange Retained

capital premium reserve reserve reserves Teserves earnings Total

123 Tt KRR A by L] TRE A it

Note RMB 000 RMB U0 RMB U0 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB U0 RMB U0 RMB 000

it ANRBFE  AEBFT AREFr AREFr AREFT ARBFL AEREFT AREFr
Now26)  Nowe260))  Nowe 26)ii)  Nowe 26)i)  Nowe26)iv)  Note 2600)v)
Mg KRaen  WiEwain o KEead o KRl Bl

Balance at 1 January 2013
Changes in equity for 2013:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends approved in respect of the previous year
Appropriation to reserves

Balance at 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2014
Changes in equity for 2014:

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends approved in respect of the previous year
Appropriation to reserves

Balance at 31 December 2014

REF-ZH--R2kR
SRCRRERS:

ERRA
Kb2mig

FERARESH

FELFECEMECRE
HRERG

RZF-2E
IR -H2kR

REZ-WE-H-R24H
ZE-MERERS:

ERE
LUES e

FEEMRELE

FELFEDEMECRE
HRERA

REZ-Mi
IR -H2hR

371 196,160 6200 W80 85879 (332) 360901 862,371
- - - - - - 130600 130600

B B . B . 63) - (63)

- - - - - (63) 130,600 129965

) - (1659 - - - - - (16592)
. . - . 14714 . (14714 .

371 179.368 6200 W94 100393 (3.957) 179781 97574

371 179,368 6200 W94 100393 (3.957) 179781 97574

- - - - - - 24606 24406

- - - - - 0 - 206

- - - - - 0 24606 04412

) - - - - - - (165%) (165%)
- - - - 3459 - (36459) -

371 179.568 6200 W42 137052 (a751) 65139 1183 %61

The notes on pages 70 to 163 form part of these financial 28707 163 Z Bt 5E £ A< W 5 e % 1) — #0473

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

WaBblehag

For the year ended 31 December 2014
#BEF—PES A=A H L EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI R 517 )
2014 2013
e U Ei S —F—-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ks AR Tz AR¥T T
Operating activities KEWH)
Cash generated from operations ET S B4 20(b) 1,164,663 98,928
Income tax paid by the o R B SR 2 FD AN BT AR B
subsidiaries in the PRC (69,952) (29,142)
Income tax paid by the T s o 2 m) AT R A B
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (216) -
Net cash generated from KW s ETH
operating activities 1,094,495 69,786
Investing activities BEEH
Interest received B A S 6,631 5,633
Proceeds received upon maturity it O HEHH A7 3CE 148
of pledged deposits 2 T 15 3 A 539,608 328,536
Payment for pledged deposits E K AE S AT R (792,806) (297,739)
Payment for purchase of property, MEE Y ~ WFE Mt 2 13
plant and equipment (294,678) (307,078)
Proceeds from disposal of Y- BE K
property, plant and equipment A BT A5 158 73,552
Proceeds from disposal of trading & 3¢ 5 i 7 iy 15 3 16
securities - 1,000
Payment for investment in an A B N B AT R
associate (4,000) -
Net cash used in investing BEFEH B & T8
activities (545,087) (196,096)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GaBemER

For the year ended 31 December 2014

#HE ZE—E| = H = A — H i EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNRIEIR)
2014 2013
- S 1! f4 2 e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt 7 AR ¥Fic AR ¥F T
Financing activities A& B
Interest paid TR (162,095) (126,815)
Proceeds from loans and AR A ST S E
borrowings 2,452,828 2,161,459
Repayment of loans and BRI LG
borrowings (2,732,485) (1,894,463)
Capital element of finance lease CL A5t Al ¥ 7 R L 46 S A T 0
rentals paid (23,920) (15,989)
Interest element of finance lease EL AT Rl B 4 R R R Ay
rentals paid (2,910) (4,017)
Dividends paid E AT R 26(b) (16,595) (16,592)
Net cash (used in)/generated mEWwE (A,
from financing activities Jiir 45 B 4 R (485,177) 103,583
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  BA& KB LS EEY
and cash equivalents B, (WA) 38 64,231 (22,727)
Cash and cash equivalents W—H BB &R
at 1 January HE%EHED 240,919 264,804
Effect of foreign exchange [ 3 5 ) & 5 B
rate changes 706 (1,158)
Cash and cash equivalents RT_A=+—Hm
at 31 December BekB&FHD 305,856 240,919

The notes on pages 70 to 163 form part of these financial 5570F 163 E 2 M 5 & 78 BB He & 19 — 304 -

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRSs promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), International
Accounting Standards (“TASs”) and related
Interpretations. These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for
this financial year and the comparative period
continue to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part
9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance, and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted and consistently applied by the Company
the

«

and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
Group”) is set out below.

The TASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

1

FEEFEBOR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in an
associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of

the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(0

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB698 million which indicated the existence
of an uncertainty which may cast doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Notwithstanding the net current liabilities position,
the Directors are of the opinion that, based on
undrawn banking facilities of RMB1,105 million
of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and a
detailed review of the working capital forecast of
the Group for the year ending 31 December 2015,
the Group will have the necessary liquid funds to
finance its working capital and capital expenditure
requirements. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (note 1(h)).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (note I1(h)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Associate (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

®

Non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets included investments
in equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are initially stated at fair value, which
is their transaction price unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs.

Non-current financial assets that do not have
a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot
otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (note 1(h)).

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated in
the consolidated statements of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (note 1(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and

borrowing costs (Note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or

loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

. Buildings and plants held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
35 years after the date of completion.

. Machinery 4 — 20 years

. Motor vehicles 3 — 5 years

. Office equipment 3 - 10 years
and others

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of non-current financial
assets and receivables

Non-current financial assets and receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-current financial
assets and receivables (continued)

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

- For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not

reversed.
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i3

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

[47] Impairment of non-current financial

assets and receivables (continued)

For trade and other current
receivables carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in

prior years.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of non-current financial
assets and receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- lease prepayment;
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- non-current financial assets (No

quoted market price); and
- prepayment for machinery; and

- investment in subsidiaries and
associates in the Company’s
statement of financial position or in
the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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o B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KU RS )
Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEFFHBOR ()
(h) Impairment of assets (continued) (h) &R (4
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued) i) HMEFEWME ()
Recognition of impairment losses - T 8 6 1 s 18
An impairment loss is recognised in ik ¥ 7 L i Ja B 4
profit or loss if the carrying amount A LA 2 R T (R

of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (note 1(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

i)

Aluminium profiles manufacturing

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Inventories (continued)

(i)

(i)

Aluminium profiles manufacturing

(continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs capitalised
(see note 1(s)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to
be incurred in selling the property.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()]

(k)

@

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (note 1(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

()

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an

expense.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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A W 5 A i

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss

or credit can be utilised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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A W 5 A i

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and

movements therein, are presented separately from

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are

offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred

tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the

Company or the Group has the legally enforceable

right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the following additional conditions

are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and

liabilities, the Company or the Group

intends either to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes

levied

either:

by the same taxation authority on

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder™)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(p)
(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group, under the guarantee, and
(b) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts and goods

return.
Services income
Revenue from services rendered is

recognised in profit or loss upon the

completion of transaction.
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A W 5 A i

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive

payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

1

EEGEHBOR ()

(q)

W ik e G (A )
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other revenue
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN BRI 5)

1 FEEGEIER 2

(q)

(r)

W 55 iR (A
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

()

(i1)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the

Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

1 EEGFIEOR )
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A W 5 A i

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(®

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies: (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii)) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The TASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
and one new interpretation that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

Of these, the following developments are relevant to the

Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,

Investment entities

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

IFRIC 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as defined
in the amended IFRS 10. Investment entities are required
to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss. These amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be

an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
IAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the policies
already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to IAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or cash-generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The Group did not have any impaired non-
financial assets which require disclosure.

IFRIC 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to
pay a levy imposed by a government should be recognised.
The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the guidance is consistent with the Group’s

existing accounting policies.
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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Turnover 3

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of aluminium profiles.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers. Turnover excludes value added taxes or other
sales taxes and is after allowance for goods returned and
deduction of any trade discounts. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover

during the year is as follows:

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

CEX

A 4 ] = B o R R G A

BRBEREMEF B, ZEH B EH
B4 g B B A 8 6 B OH - I © 41 BR
B S B AT A 5 4T 41 < AR B SR
i 2 5 FE R U BT

2014 2013
RBP4 —E =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T AR WT T
Manufacture and sale of B K8 8 B
aluminium profiles 4,712,104 3,859,711
Manufacture and sale of Bk T 6 R AR
aluminium panels, moulds and L R R B A
spare parts 128,751 46,326
Provision of processing services P A I R 5 3,060 1,420
4,843,915 3,907,457

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not
include any individual customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities

are disclosed in note 11 to these financial statements.

AEMEFREREL el AXABIELS
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A W 5 A i

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI RESR)
4  Other revenue and other net loss 4 HfloBess B I i s 18 R
2014 2013
ZE e xR =
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T ANRETFT
Other revenue o f g 25
Interest income FE A 6,631 5,633
Government grants (i) R HE A ()
— Unconditional subsidies — AR A B 5,229 6,023
— Conditional subsidies (Note 24) — B ARG (B FF24) 13,043 26,204
Rental income H G A 13,056 6,705
Others HAth 506 -
38,465 44,565
Other net loss i )5 18 5 AR
Net loss on aluminium future contracts AR IR g R ) TERER i (762) -
Loss on disposal of property, t %% % ‘ujﬁ'ﬁj;:"‘v‘ I
plant and equipment ik i s 18 (4,876) (1,259)
Net foreign exchange losses A1 HE i 18 13 A (951) (1,446)
(6,589) (2,705)
6 Government grants in the form of cash subsidies i) AL G R B UM & B S B 4

were received from various PRC government

authorities.

Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements of certain government
grants amounting to RMBS5,229,000 (2013:
RMB6,023,000) were unconditional. They
were funds to subsidise the operating
expenses of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group during the year.

Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount
of conditional government grants charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB13,043,000 (2013: RMB26,204,000)
(Note 24).

i S5 FE 2K B0 SR Al BY

0 0

S E s ANR 5,229,000
T ZF =44 AR
6,023,0007C) Z %5 T BT
Bl e 8E L A 1 o HL 2 Al
AR IR 7 4 0 22 v 1 e A
ZEE B R 4

A Ao B

RN R R B 2 A A
JiF A B - Sl A0 B B 4 R SE i
Ao REE - E—PI4ES
A=+—HILEEZ %51
T % N 11 B 2 A 6 4 IEURT Al
B & % B N R 13,043,000
T F— =4 AR
26,204,0007%) (Ml 7E24) °
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B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNREIR)
Profit before taxation 5 BROBEHT G A
(a) Finance costs: (a) 1 AN
2014 2013
e S 1 Ki —E =
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR ¥FiL YN
Interest expenses on bank loans  $R 17832 Fl & Bl 32 149,593 132,513
Interest expenses on O3 B 5 4 2 R B S
discounted bills 11,847 7,926
Finance charges on obligations G TR B AT 2 M ES
under finance leases 2,910 4,014
Total borrowing costs 18£8 i A H A 164,350 144,453
Less: interest expenses W FEEIRERNZFE
capitalised into BH S E AL *
construction in progress* (6,764) (13,268)
157,586 131,185
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a * 15 B AR E 15 F #5.76 JE £
rate of 5.76% to 6.60% (2013: 5.78% to 6.60%) 6.60/F (=—F— =14 578/ %
per annum. 6.60/F) FLUZFKIE -
(b)  Staff costs: (b) B TR :
2014 2013
e S 11K S —E =
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARE T AR HT T
Salaries, wages and other B LE R A AR
benefits 399,000 264,523
Contributions to defined I S 7 AR AR A ) 4
contribution retirement plan 21,242 17,336
420,242 281,859
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

5

Profit before taxation (continued)

(b)

Staff costs: (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the
local authority whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes
based on certain percentages of the eligible

employees’ salaries.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) are required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The Group and its employees in Hong Kong make
monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from
employees and employers are subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HKD25,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HKD25,000).

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions
described above.

5

b B wi v A a2)

(b)

BTRA: (#)

AR v B A B 55 8 A B Sk B o
1] o g 2 ) 22 Bl 3t 7 SEOR 486 R AL
Ak 0 52 A OB KRR A RE B (TR
DAY 3: AN T 000y F/ARSIF 3y
AR BB T A 2> B
B K

T 5 o PE N B A w46 R 1)
B A RE A (TR 4] ) 1 4t
Ho AL KR HFERE Y H %
il AR wH MR 6T 52 iR B
A BRI S 5% [r] 5 A 4 5 B A )
TP o A —F —AE+
=+ —H IR R B KR A
LA H AR B Ui A 25,000 ¢ (-
F— =4 125,000 7T ) £ LR -

B b 2 R A o A G2 Sl 4 ok S A+
1 B 7B AR B A 28 PR A% A 1L R 3
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B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNREIR)
Profit before taxation (continued) 5 ki Be w6 A (45)
Other items: (c) HibIEH :
2014 2013
—E A e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥FiL N R ¥F L
Depreciation (i) Si10))
— assets held under finance —DIRERERE 2
leases B 7,797 7,774
— other assets — HoA ¥ 124,886 87,184
Amortisation of lease TEAS T & B8 )
prepayments (1) 7,359 8,341
Research and development 88 B4R (i)
costs (ii) 15,907 7,859
Impairment losses on trade and 52 5y I At IR AT T I
other receivables (Note 18) WEte (HFE18) 10,063 4,014
Impairment losses on non-current  JF il B 5 fll & & 2
financial assets WAE 1R 11,912 -
Auditors’ remuneration 727 S 1 <
— audit services — %R 2,020 1,661
— other services — HAth A 1% 539 554
Cost of inventories (1) W) 4,086,288 3,397,441
Operating lease charges (i) KB 4 3) 915 720
(i) Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 (i) HE X —-WFE+ H

December 2014 included RMB375,477,000
(2013: RMB245,670,000) relating to
depreciation, amortisation, operating lease

charges and staff costs, which amount is

also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above or in note 5(b)

for each of these types of expenses.

(ii) Research and development costs include
RMB5,849,000 (2013: RMB4,923,000)

relating to staff costs of employees which

amount is also included in total staff costs

as disclosed in note 5(b).

(i1)

“t—HIEFE fFERA
AW KT - #he - g
HERE LlAZSER R
A R #375,477,00000 ( %
— =4 N R H6245,670,000
JG) AR E REA L
5 M 515 (b) 23 BH 9 5% 1) &8
B S A -

MEHRADEREEZ B8 L
AN B #55,849,0000C (—
F— =4 AR %4,923,000
JG) o ¥4 BN B EE A R
S 2 B TR A A -
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

6 Income tax expenses 6 FifaBib X
(a)  Income tax expenses in the consolidated income (a) EHAWBREZ B LS
statement represent:
2014 2013
e S Ei S —E =
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANREF AR WET o
Current tax R 351 856 08
Provision for PRC corporate H R A S T A5 B4 A
income tax 52,206 31,287
Provision for PRC land F B - B (E B 5
appreciation tax 11,106 -
Provision for Hong Kong Profits 7 it | 15 i 1% ff
Tax - 255
63,312 31,542
Deferred tax 9K #iE i IE
Origination and reversal of Tifh IR 222 B 758 AE 2 438 (]
temporary differences (18,659) 6,750
44,653 38,292
i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of 6) R A% B 12 TE I o Jog) i 4o

the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and

the BVIL

(i1) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013:16.5%).

B (T3 8 0 2 #E 155 1) BRI
B B > A S 1 ) JE 480 A B
SR S i LR 2 AT
(OXCE

(i) BHBAEBEBEREE
T—E+H=+—H1k
AR Ak T RE BB I A DA
16.5%B RFHHA (ZF— =
A 16.5%) o
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6 Income tax expenses (continued)

(a) Income tax expenses in the consolidated income

statement represent: (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are liable to PRC
corporate income tax as follows:

. All PRC subsidiaries of the Group
are limited liability companies
established under the laws of the
PRC. They are liable to the PRC
corporate income tax at a rate of
25% (2013: 25%) except Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Xingfa”), Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co.,
Ltd (“Xingfa Jiangxi”) and Xingfa
Aluminium Chengdu Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Chengdu”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

. Guangdong Xingfa is qualified as a
“High-New-Technology Enterprise”
and entitled to the preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 2012
to 2014. The corporate income
tax rate applicable to Guangdong
Xingfa is 15% for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: 15%).

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

6  FrfEBih s ()

(@ TEEGWRERZHGBEZLS:

(#)

(iii)

AR BE T B RT A R B B KR
> A< 5 ) 2 o I R Jag 8
JEU% LA B A<M v 1 4 3
P # Bt :

. AL | BT A R R
ANNCIDNE =% 3l RTS
WAL Z AR -
MR E F N
FE+_A=+—H1
AE R $E25% (&
— ZAE25%) Z B
B B A 2 BT
15 M JBE B % g
EHMWATR ([FERE
BLEE ] ) - JRE R B BE
% (JL0) AR A A
([HLEE 7LV ) M B
R (L) AR
2y Al (T B3 i #R )
R 4h o

. JEE oL LA T s
AT 2 B
AR TR E
FWEZHI5%Z
1B BT A5 BB AR o B
EOR—NFEA
A=+—H 145
) R R B
SEMEBBRE
15% (=% — =
15%) °
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

6

Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

Income tax expenses in the consolidated income

statement represent: (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group are liable to PRC corporate
income tax as follows: (continued)

. Xingfa Jiangxi has applied for the
“High-New-Technology Enterprise”
in 2013 but finally been granted such
status in the second quarter of 2014.
This has entitled Xingfa Jiangxi
to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% from 2013 to 2015. Thus
Xingfa Jiangxi made the income
tax provision at the rate of 25% in
2013 then enjoyed the preferential
tax rate of 15% subsequently in
the corporate income tax filing for
year 2013 in 2014. The corporate
income tax rate applicable to Xingfa
Jiangxi is 15% for the year ended 31
December 2014.

. Xingfa Chengdu is qualified as a
“High-New-Technology Enterprise”
and entitled to the preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 2014
to 2016. The corporate income tax
rate applicable to Xingfa Chengdu
is 15% for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: 25%).

6

Fi 9 B8 B X (4

(a)

T A 5 W8 6 22 i 19 BE B 32 2

(#)

(iii)

AR BE T B RT A R B B KR
> A< 4R ) 2 o I A Jag 2
JEU% LA B A<M v 1 4 3
P f i - ()

BT B L F
— A R
i A 2 | > {5 B &
R R
HEFZAT B A7 o L]
A A RIS
—=4ERE F AR
EAH15%2 % H TS
BB R - K 0L > B 5%
VLV T — =%
25% 2 B R AE i 15
BB > M 2 AR
F— AR —F
— AR
FriR Bl = H15% 2
BEBER -HE_F
—WMEFH =t
H Lk 47 B > BLEE T oY
B 2 A S A BB
RE15% o

L% AR B T R
a2l 2 &%
R AR E
FE—NEFEEHI5%Z
T A5 BB % o
EOF N+
A=+—H1F8
O LR R 2
1 3 T 15 BB R
15% (& —=
25%)
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6 Income tax expenses (continued)

(a) Income tax expenses in the consolidated income

statement represent: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Guangdong Xingfa was subject to
assessment and levying of PRC land
appreciation tax for the transfer of the
land use right to its subsidiary, Foshan
Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Real
Estate”). It was calculated at 7% of the
transfer transaction price. The intra-group

transaction is elaborated in note 25(b).

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law and its implementation rules, dividends
receivable by non-PRC corporate residents
from PRC enterprises are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008.
In addition, under the Sino-Hong Kong
Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for dividend income derived
from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident
is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25%
or more of the equity interests of the PRC
company. As Guangdong Xingfa is held by
a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary which
is the qualified Hong Kong tax resident, a
rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of
this withholding tax.

As Guangdong Xingfa is wholly owned
by the Company, the Company can control
the payments of dividends by Guangdong
Xingfa and the Company’s directors have
confirmed that it is unlikely that Guangdong
Xingfa will pay dividends in connection
with the profits generated after 1 January

2008 in the foreseeable future.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

6  FrfEBih s ()

(@ TEEGWRERZHGBEZLS:

(#)

(iv)

(v)

Ji R 5 ZE A v L
% 1Ly Ty B s 7 BH 9 A BR
(T BEE 5 M | )
o+ b {5 HE T AG K Ol
I - 3 3 (E B o o 5 4
3G EAR BT %ot 3 - SRR
HR 2y ) H] 2 G W A B R
25(b) -

MR P54 2E P 5 Bl ik S L EH e
el Eh A ERRAF
B 2 M U I B R R g
Z\AE— H — H B 4 B
Z FE 2 1098 44 5 E 0
Bl > B IE 1 BT Mo 4 51 & B
W I JE A o A > AR B
RV 2k B R OB 4 PE
BB E - i — B A EEH
WREE R A PN A
[EfmA N THFE25%
LA b M > 5% B
JE B A PR A 2 A
RIZE 5 % B RSN FEFIBL
A L i el i A
W 5 RS 2 B A | (K
BEEKFBBIEER) &
Ao W S TE BB 2
B F5% -

F B R LB AR A Al 2 E
A - BOAR 2 W BE A 1 1 R
REBIRA L - BA LT
S AR A T LA A
RO 5 N K AT RE LIS — %
FNE—H-RARELEZ
FISEAS IS o
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

6 Income tax expenses (continued)

6 ifEBiH X )

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) 530 FH BE R GT 5 2 7 45 B B S B
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: i A R -
2014 2013
EewE oEo=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Profit before income tax I Jr 15 B4 T 6 ) 269,259 168,892
Notional tax on profit before 2 A B ) 325 HE [ 8
taxation, calculated at the rates B R EHE Z BRBLRT
applicable to the jurisdiction T Fll 2 44 F B IH
concerned 67,902 46,336
Tax effect of non-deductible NN B S 2 B R 2
expenses 660 1,105
Tax effect of share of loss of an  JEA I 45 /8 7] 5 4R 2
associate BiFs 5 256 -
Effect of tax concession BiHs B B 2 % (35,318) (9,149)
Effect on deferred tax balances BiEEHH—H—H
at 1 January resulting from a R SE B TE & fin 2 5 28
change in tax rate 47 -
PRC land appreciation tax o g (A 11,106 -
Income tax expenses JIT 4581 B 52 44,653 38,292




7

B 2% En 2 AR A BR A A XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3% Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W 5 A W Gk

Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration of the Group are as

follows:

7 #HEME

AL E RSN

Salary,
allowance
and benefits

2014
“EmE

Contribution
to retirement

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

Fees inkind  benefit plan  Bonus paid Total
Bia o el BHRAEA
e REWAE At 4k 3% [RALRFIN Mt
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ANRWETLE ARWTEZ AREFTEZ AR¥ETZ ARKETXL
Executive directors WiTES
Mr Liu Libin Bl 720 196 28 793 1,737
Mr LUO Su RS 636 264 - 714 1,614
Mr LUO Riming AW 536 266 18 714 1,534
Mr LIAO Yuging BEEEE 536 266 16 793 1,611
Mr LAW Yung Koon bR 494 - 13 431 938
Mr WANG Zhihua EHERE 416 186 10 282 894
Mr DAI Feng (-3t 320 196 28 634 1,178
Non-executive director FPfTES
Mr CHEN Shengguan B s o 6 4 - = = - =
Independent non-executive 3 JE 1T H 3
directors
Mr CHEN Mo BB S A 120 - - - 120
Mr HO Kwan Yiu fi s 5k 120 = = = 120
Mr LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #k3E8 554 150 = = = 150
Mr. Liang Shibin ity et 120 - = - 120
Alternative director to By EE B LESR
Mr. Liu Libin
Mr Wong Siu Ki w6 B A 480 120 4 = 604
Total At 4,648 1,494 117 4,361 10,620
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LIRS R )
7  Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7 HHEMES )
2013
ZE—Z
Salary,
allowance  Contribution
and benefits  to retirement
Fees inkind  benefit plan Bonus paid Total
B B BARAEF
e REWHE A 34k 5 EffiRAL At
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFIL  AREFL ARFEFL AREFL AREFIL
Executive directors Ui EH
Mr Liu Libin B3k A 720 180 - 430 1,330
Mr LUO Su 3 S 636 264 - 387 1,287
Mr LUO Riming A H W 536 264 21 387 1,208
Mr LIAO Yuging BB 536 264 - 430 1,230
Mr LAW Yung Koon B 497 - 12 - 509
Mr WANG Zhihua TH#ERL 416 84 12 171 683
Mr DAI Feng g4 320 180 - 344 844
Non-executive director EBTES
Mr CHEN Shengguan Sl e - - - - -

Independent non-executive BV HTHESE

directors
Mr CHEN Mo B e 120 - - - 120
Mr HO Kwan Yiu fil 2 4 120 - - - 120
Mr LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #k3Ei6 52 150 - - - 150
Mr. Liang Shibin BRI 120 - - - 120

Alternative director to Bl BEES
Mr. Liu Libin
Mr Wong Siu Ki pel s 480 120 - - 600

Total st 4,651 1,356 45 2,149 8,201
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7

An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the number of
directors and remuneration range is as follows:

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

wEHME )

P2 38 N K P < o ) 1) 2 I 4 0 B
T

2014 2013
e S 1' F<2 e
Number of Number of
directors directors
HHAH EHNH
Nil to Hong Kong Dollars % %1,000,000%% 70
(“HKD”)1,000,000 (M#Tl) 6 8
HKD1,000,000 — HKD2,500,000 1,000,000% 7C &
2,500,000% 7C 7 5
8  Senior management remuneration 8 TmMEHAEGM

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all are
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7 during
the year (2013: five).

9 Profit attributable to equity shareholders 9

of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB20,646,000 (2013:
RMB&,215,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

WA REFHMA L 2 HEFR K
SFAASAE LR B M RET B ER (&=
IR -

2% 2 ) HE 2% M R A e A

AR A RE o I R4 A5 A s R AL 5 18
NE#520,646,0000C ( —~F— =4 NR¥
8,215,0000C) » EL A AR A Al 2 BAHS ) %
B4 o
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

9  Profit attributable to equity shareholders 9 A2 W) HE % Bt 5 B A ¥ I (4%
of the Company (continued)

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s bl AN R AE RN ()R 2
(loss)/profit for the year: R :
2014 2013
e S U2 —E =4
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T AR ETF o

Amount of consolidated loss attributable i 28 2\ 7] AR5 ¥ 36 v g FE

to equity shareholders dealt with in HE 2 R AL 55 6

the Company’s financial statements i 48 4 3 (20,646) (8,215)
Final dividends from subsidiaries A& B 2N A — 1

attributable to the profits of the IO B4 B Vs ) o A AR A

previous financial year, approved and JE A8t T 2 AT Y R

paid during the year B 16,595 16,592
Company’s (loss)/profit for the year AARZAEE (BHE)

(Note 26(a)) it M (HfiE26(a)) (4,051) 8,377

10 Earnings per share 10 HR&EF

The calculation of basic earnings per share during the BE_Z—NFEF A= —HIEFE
year ended 31 December 2014 was based on the profit T B B A T R T AR A A A R A B
attributable to equity shareholders of the Group of JEE A Tk R R #5224,606,0000T ( —F — =
RMB224,606,000 (2013: RMB130,600,000) and the A NRW130,600,00000) K a2 &
weighted average number of shares in issue during the —M4E+ = H =+ —HIL4EET TN
year ended 31 December 2014 of 418,000,000 (2013: HEST- 1 11 #418,000,000/8 ( & — = 4F
418,000,000). 418,000,000/ ) 5 <
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue BE_F-MWEKR_F—-=Z4+2"H
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, and == B R AR s I T AT T A
therefore, the diluted earnings per share are the same as the 78 B > O A v ) B g TR R A 2 A A

basic earnings per share. [A] o
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Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which the information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments.

. Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium profiles,

mainly for industrial usage.

. Construction aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells aluminium profiles with
surface finishing, including anodic oxidation
aluminium profiles, electrophoresis coating
aluminium profiles, powder coating aluminium
profiles and PVDF coating aluminium profiles.
Construction aluminium profiles are widely used in
architecture decoration.

All other segments include the provision of processing
services, manufacture and sale of aluminium panels,
moulds and spare parts and property under development
for sale.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including
sharing of assets and technical know-how, is not
measured.

11

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

g B e A

A B [ 32 2 it AR R PR OFL TS o i B ) A 4R
P o e LA T A TN R RS A DA AEAT TR
Or B B BT AL 2 R — S T A AR
B C 2R 5 A AT e

. T S B % T R AT
AR EEMAE TN -

. 2 S BB - A% R R B A
R ] i P 4 R b > B35 B M 4R AL S
T ~ T UK U 2 4 T~ B oK W
527U b4 St PVDFME %2 4 10 bF o g 58
TR I R A

Jr A7 A 5 ¥ B0 455 B i T B B R
5B g AR RE R IR R B R
o,

(a) rEpEE-EEKAM

T HEAT o3 MR AT A B 23 T TR R
Orm > AR E AT E B L
DA ik e B 5 1) ] 0 o R A

Wt M B 52 )9 2 7% 5% 5 o) R B R
Z B B a5 03 B BT R A 2 B SR
A% A5 I A T T A M B O
A 22 A BR S 00 i 2 AT 4R 4 20
SR > Je— 1] o — > wR 4R i 2
W B (B4 36 & 2 M A AM)
A A FHEAE A
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU R HIR)
11 Segment reporting (continued) 11 5 B (a)
(a)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) SEbES -BERE KA (F)
The measure used for reporting segment profit T & 43 s A 2wt B
is gross profit. The Group’s senior executive Il o 2 45 B i ACBAT B N B AR
management is provided with segment information HEA B 4y B0 0 4 B i A 2 G R
concerning segment revenue and profit. Segment Ko op T A K BRI M E A e A
assets and liabilities are not reported to the Group’s S RATE I B R o
senior executive management regularly.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable MR E 4R e — =
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior TZA=Z T HIEFEZ GRS
executive management for the purposes of resource B 53 W R CRP AR T - T A B T A
allocation and assessment of segment performance FEPATE AN B AR AL H
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is ARG S RS R
set out below:
Industrial Construction
aluminium profiles aluminium profiles All other segments Total
ToESMH R B F A2 i wit
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
SR-NE CF-ZE ZR-NE CF-ZF ZFONE CF-ZF Z-NE CT-ZF
RMB000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB 000
ARBTE ARFTL ARWFZ ARETT ARRFE ARETT AREFZ ARETE
Reportable segment revenue 1 #t % 2 # i
Revenue from external REMREF 2l
customers 795,350 673391 3,916,755 3,186,320 131,810 47746+ 4843915 3,907,457
Reportable segment profit % 2 M Al
Gross profit M 114,614 64,981 617,970 422,925 25,043 2,110 757,627 510,016
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Segment reporting (continued) 11

(b)

(0

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

g b )

(b) AT HE o W R A 2 B

2014 2013
- S 11 f4 2 xR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥FiL N R ¥F L
Reportable segment profit KAALEINREF 2
derived from the Group’s A A A3 S iR
external customers 757,627 510,016
Other revenue HoAb g %5 38,465 44,565
Other net loss A s 48 15 AR (6,589) (2,705)
Distribution costs 53 8 AR (102,277) (70,174)
Administrative expenses 1T B 3 (258,676) (181,625)
Finance costs BB LA (157,586) (131,185)
Share of loss of an associate JRE A Y2 A s 4R (1,705) -
Consolidated profit before B 5l HI) 25 4 Ui A1)
taxation 269,259 168,892

Geographic information

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as
well as analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of
segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment by geographical market has not been
presented as over 99% of the turnover are generated
from the PRC market.

(c) Ho 1= & R

S I 52 5] A A B 44 b I T 2 1 2
e W ES G VNS BN
R T A B2 R Rk
52 BT SRR 5 #199% 2 & 2EHE
¥rok g o B e
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

12 Property, plant and equipment 12 W3-~ Wb Bkt
Office
Buildings Motor  equipment Construction
and plants  Machinery Vehicles  and others in progress Total
UL
B R i ¥ R B GERIR At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB’000
ARETFILE ARETFILE AREFIL AREFFL AREFL ARETL
Cost: JRA :
At 1 January 2013 RoFE-=5
—H—H 677,916 883,922 23,333 92,268 231,856 1,909,295
Additions wE 18,215 214,841 2,866 20,948 220,350 477,220
Transfer from construction in progress HEATEETR 147,330 38,346 204 667 (186,547) -
Disposal & - (136,303) - (16) - (136,319)
At 31 December 2013 RoF-=5
+=A=1+—H 843,461 1,000,806 26,403 113,867 265,659 2,250,196
At 1 January 2014 i SIS
—H—H 843,461 1,000,806 26,403 113,867 265,659 2,250,196
Additions wE 7,455 141,886 370 25,466 88,947 264,124
Transfer from construction in progress  ## F /£ # T2 127,032 93,269 69 633 (221,023) -
Disposal th (385) (8,513) (481) - - (9.379)
Reclassification to investment TR EEERES
property under development REWE - - - - (76,395) (76,395)
At 31 December 2014 R E T4
+=A=+—H 977,563 1,227,448 26,361 139,986 57,188 2,428,546
Accumulated depreciation: Bt :
At I January 2013 RoF-Z4
—H—H (30,750)  (272,494) (11,497) (33,722) - (348.463)
Charge for the year AARFE S (20,916) (50,597) (3,193) (20,252) - (94,958)
Written back on disposals 1B 4 o] - 26,166 - 1 - 26,167
At 31 December 2013 WoE—=4
+=ZHA=+—H (51,666)  (296,925) (14,690) (53,973) - (417,254)
At 1 January 2014 R E A
—H—H (51,666)  (296,925) (14,690) (53,973) - (417,254)
Charge for the year AR (25,223) (80,772) (2,899) (23,789) - (132,683)
Written back on disposals B IR el 137 3,717 276 - - 4,130
At 31 December 2014 il EiS
+=A=+—H (76,752)  (373,980) (17,313) (77,762) - (545,807)
Net book value: e T ¥4
At 31 December 2014 R4
+=H=+—H 900,811 853,468 9,048 62,224 57,188 1,882,739
At 31 December 2013 RoE—=4
+=A=+—H 791,795 703,881 11,713 59,894 265,659 1,832,942
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12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

All properties owned by the Group are located in
the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Group is in
the process of applying for the title certificates
of certain properties with carrying value of
approximately RMB340,812,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB319,300,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
use of and the conduct of operating activities at the
properties referred to above are not affected by the
fact that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant
property title certificates.

Certain plants with net book value of
RMB127,531,000 (2013: RMB36,650,000) were
pledged as securities for bank loans of the Group as
at 31 December 2014. (Note 22(b))

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group had entered into a sale and finance lease
back contract for certain production equipment
expiring in three years. The net book value of the
equipment at the date of execution of the sales and
lease back contract was RMB107,776,000. At the
end of the lease term, the Group has the option to
purchase the equipment at a price deemed to be a
bargain purchase option. The lease contract did not
include contingent rental.

As at 31 December 2014, the net book value of equipment
held under the finance lease was RMB92,942,000 (31
December 2013: RMB100,292,000).

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

12 Wb sttt v

() AR A 2T AL
I8 o

(i) MWEAWE AL ALHIERE R
TE-PEF T H =~ HZIER
T8 #) B N R 340,812,0007C ( —
— =4 AR #319,300,0000C) 2
T EE I RS o AN
R N Lk LA bl
Y E XN SRR N PN S
ﬁﬁﬁkﬁxﬁ%tﬁ B 2 SRR T 7

E/
W £

(i) MFE—WEFTFZHA =T —HE
T (E B N R 9127,531,0000T (-
F— =4 AR #36,650,0000C) 2
7T WS CARAT R 25 A 42 MR AT 1
KR (B 7E22(b) ) ©

vy #®E_ZLZ—Z4F1+_H=1+—H1
AR AN B T AR R T o
— A R A A R AT
% JE I o A S L m LA
Kz B wefl 2 R i (E A AR
¥ 107,776,0007C o i FHL 6 1 BR 45 oK
7 » AN 4 [ A SR IR 0 A A R
W R A % o %
A A AL B LA o

RoE—WAET A =+ —H o iR RE
I N A 2 3% 5 5t 2 IR i E 2 AR
#92,942,0007C ( —“FE—=4F+_H=+—
H: AR %100,292,0007T) ©
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

rights on leasehold land located in the PRC. As at
31 December 2014, the remaining period of the

land use rights ranges from 38 to 45 years.

(i) The lease prepayments with carrying value of (i)
RMB308,527,000 (2013: RMB363,274,000) was
pledged as securities for bank loans of the Group as

at 31 December 2014 (Note 22(b)).

(UNREIR)
13 Lease prepayments 13 FEATH %
The Group
KM
2014 2013
e e 1! E2D e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F i N R ¥F L
Cost: BRAR
At 1 January Ww—H—H 400,317 400,317
Reclassification to investment property — HF /- HEHFE
under development id L7/ S (47,388) -
At 31 December BtH=ZA=+—H 352929 400,317
Accumulated amortisation: LR R
At 1 January m—H—H (37,043) (28,702)
Charge for the year AR BE ST (7,359) (8,341)
At 31 December Rr=—A=+—8 (44,402)  (37,043)
Carrying amount: R T AL
At 31 December wrH=+—H 308,527 363,274
(i) Lease prepayments represent the Group’s land use (i) TE A L 4 8 A5 4R 0 b B 2 AL B

b 2 b A R A R — U AR
+ZH=+—H Ll R f
T EW A F38E454F o

B oE—E+ A=+ —H R
Tl {8 A A R 5308,527,0000C (%
— =4 NR#5363,274,0000C0) 2
A A P B A VE A AR
RAITE R AR (HF7E22b)) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RIS R )
Investments in subsidiaries 14 RWBATZEE
The Company
YN/ |
2014 2013
S K —E =
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Fic AR T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE b Ay > e AR 626,654 626,654

Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

RoFE—E LA S AR

2014 are set out below: R JBS 2w O AR
Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Attributable
Name of company establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
kR, C#iT R
ANEEA O 0 8 B H BREA A 2 A HE 2 FEEH
Direct Indirect
HE ] #%
% %
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI United 100% - Investment holding
(“Xingfa BVI”) 2 October 2007 States Dollars
(“USD”) 1,000
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited Ly Reids 1,000% 7€ BEER
([ Xingfa BVI]) “ERLETAZH (M%)
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars - 100%  Sales of aluminium
Limited (“Xingfa Hong Kong”) 14 April 2008 (“HKD”) 1,000 profiles
BUEEGRE (B ) AR A il 1,000i5 7t S SR
(TREEFRE]) ZEFNENA LA (M)
Guangdong Xingfa PRC RMB360,040,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
JBE UL B8 A R ) (1) ) 26 May 2006 sales of aluminium
profiles
JBE R L8 8 A TR W ) i) I AR BB R SRR
“EFNE 360,040,0007C

HAZ+~H
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

14

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

14 JRHEARZBE @)

Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Attributable
Name of company establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
Ak i, C#fTk
kA JR 3L 3 B R H ) BRBEAR A5 2 A B 2 FEEH
Direct Indirect
H# Il #
% %

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. 7 July 2009 sales of aluminium
BEHE (AR A R 7 ) i) profiles
(“Xingfa Chengdu”)

B RE (M) AR A A GGy HE NS He 7 T B R b
(TELgE A ]) “EFNFELALH 100,000,0007C

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. 30 May 2012 sales of aluminium
JiE RS 4R 2 (VL) A RA profiles
(i)(iit) (“Xingfa Jiangxi”)

B SR BLgE 52 (L) i NS He 7 T B B b
HIRA A @) (TEETE]) —%F-ZFhfA=+H 100,000,0007C

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Henan) Co., Ltd. 10 May 2010 sales of aluminium
B AL B % () A R A profiles
(i)(iii) (“Xingfa Henan”)

B SR BLgE 3R 2 (T ) i NS He 7 T B S R
HRA A @) (T8EM#])  ZF-FFAA+H 100,000,0007C

Foshan Xingfa Real Estate PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Development, sale
Co., Ltd. 5 June 2013 and management of
i LUy 77 L o B PR properties
(i)(iif) (“Xingfa Real Estate”)

MR EAERMEARAT P AR /ESL LS
(i)(iii) (TBLEE PS4 ]) “E-ZHERALHA 8,000,0007C HEREH

i) The English translation of the Company names @) VNGB i P S Q- U

is for reference only. The official names of these R NCIPA - Y L @
companies are in Chinese.

(ii) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned (i1) A NG VOGRS

enterprise.

(iii) The subsidiaries are companies with limited (iii) FZE TN F A A RIEEAF -

liability.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI BRI R)
15 Interest in an associate 15 RBEE A EZ R4
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

T e
L e E

RMB’000 RMB 000
AR A REF T
Share of net assets JRE Ak 5 7 i 941 -
Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is A B W A R RE 28 O 55 B A TS
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated TR R AR FEE N

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

B4 HE L )
Form of Place of Particulars Group’s
Name of business incorporation of issued and effective Held by a Principal
associate structure and business paid up capital interest subsidiary activity
C#iTk A I 2 ]
T 8 4wl 44 R FEHREMER kM B o BREAES  HEEG HH LEEH
Jiangxi Province Jingxing Limited liability People’s Republic of Registered capital of 80%(ir) 80%(i))  Manufacturing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing company China RMBS5,000,000 and sales of
Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Jingxing”) aluminium panels
(ULTE A S5 B AR AR 2
HIRAF) )
AR REERAT  ARAR ot \ R LA B R A A RS E R R
(M FEED @) A B5,000,0007C

@) The English translation of the company’s name @) NFEI BB TSRS % - 3
is for reference only. The official name of the NEIPA W Y L i -
company is in Chinese.

(ii) 20% of Jiangxi Jingxing’s paid up capital was (ii) TV 5 B 22 209% 40 2 1] AR i & M
contributed by M 5 B A E R AR A (in SR A RA A (TR M 5
English for identification only, Guangzhou Jingxing B ) ) M o AN AR ] B N R BT
Construction Technology Co., Ltd) (“Guangzhou S AT HE > DABE 2 L VY S LAY AR
Jingxing”). The Group has entered into the BAETS 77 1) o IR & H P A4k
contractual arrangement with Guangzhou Jingxing 9] Slf7 48 mT 2 S VL 7Y S B R A RE
to determine the direction of the relevant activities F > R sk A £ T 5 Y 7 5 BLA A T
of Jiangxi Jingxing. According to the contractual (/NEII

arrangement, the Group did not have rights
sufficient to give it power to control over Jiangxi
Jingxing, thus the Group deemed Jiangxi Jingxing
as an associate.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNREIR)
15 Interest in an associate (continued) 15 REEARZHESE m)
Jiangxi Jingxing, the only associate in which the Group VI VG St R A B2 0 — 22 B W N D
participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted B JE LA SEER > LA AT B o
market price is not available.
During 2014, the amount of the Group’s share of loss from PR GEE MR AR ALEH
this associate in the consolidated financial statements is MEAG 5z s AR R S A AR
RMB1,705,000. 1,705,0007C °
16 Non-current financial assets 16 k¥ B 4 b as
The Group
A 4
2014 2013
e e 1122 —x =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx ANR T
Available-for-sale equity securities: WL R AR R
— Unlisted —JF kT - 11,912

On 16 March 2012, the Group made an investment of
RMB11,911,500 in Guangdong Star Lake New Material
Company Limited (“Star Lake Material”). It represents
3.55% of the equity interests of Star Lake Material as at
31 December 2014. The principal activities of Star Lake
Material are manufacturing and selling of nonferrous
metals and biomaterials. During the year ended 31
December 2014, Star Lake Material had completed the
construction of its production workshops and commenced
the trial production.

Impairment losses of RMB11,911,500 on this investment
were recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(h)(i).

RoFE-TFEZHENH REEBE A
FEWE11,911,50070 7% 55 5 A2 W80 07 #4 BH AT FR
owE] (TEBME]) > = —4E+ A
= — B R R BERE 2 3.55% o 2
ML Z F B3 T Bk S B A (0 4 B
IR S —E = —
H 1k 4E R > B AT B o8 i B g B AR o e
4] > 3t B 4 w2 o

W% 5% B B s RN R #911,911,5000C T
iz WEBF B 1 () (i) T S BB 3R A 98 3 TR R o
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17 Inventories

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

17

o B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

8]

(a) REGMBERIERNZFEARE:

The Group
A4
2014 2013
e S 11 K2 —F—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRWET T
Aluminium profiles SRR A
manufacturing
Raw materials JE B R 129,281 149,197
Work in progress TE 8 66,308 68,246
Finished goods B 307,475 228,258
503,064 445,701
Property under development HERREBYE
for sale
Land use right & b filE ) RE 47,388 -
Deed tax &) 4,760 -
Construction cost A 76,395 -
128,543 -
631,607 445,701

The balance of property under development for sale

is expected to be recovered after more than one

year.

545 8 R W SE R B Y i — A
A e
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNREIR)
17 Inventories (continued) 17 H#8&(#)
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) WERBHZAFIABRGZIHEREEH
recognised as an expense and included in profit Vi

or loss is as follows:

The Group
A 4
2014 2013
e —x-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT L AN RWET I

Carrying amount of CE A B IR A
inventories sold 4,086,288 3,397,441
Write down of inventories KA B = -
4,086,288 3,397,441
18 Trade and other receivables 18 2 5 B B Al E i 5k JH
The Group The Company
AEH A2
2014 2013 2014 2013

“EFoNE ZESF 0 ZEFNE SR
RMB’009 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000
ANRW T ARW T ARETZ ARKTT

Current o
Trade debtors B 5 IR 729,671 580,060 = -
Bills receivable HE WO 665,626 580,675 - -
Less: allowance for doubtful W R IR
debts (11,111) (5,486) - -
1,384,186 1,155,249 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE W B} 2 ) A - - 28,404 28,404
Other receivables, prepayments JEC R i TS BRE K
and deposits e 154,020 96,920 - 293

1,538,206 1,252,169 28,404 28,697
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

Certain bills receivable with carrying value of
RMB200,210,000 were pledged as securities for bank
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013: RMB229,613,000) (Note 22(b)).

The Group’s trade and other receivables included amounts
due from related parties of RMB60,304,000 (31 December
2013: RMB38,661,000) (Note 30(b)(i)). The remaining
current trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
(a) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging

analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables

(which are included in trade and other receivables),

18

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5)

8 S Be Aty Wk JH (49)

W oE—NE+F A=+ —H REE
AR ¥5200,210,00000 2 %5 T R 24K
e AR EEMATERZIER (T —=
FE+TA=+—H: AR%229,613,0007C)
(MtzE22(b) ) -

K 2 28 Gy I At I WAk T L 455 1 i A
iy 2 HIA N R 60,304,000 ( —F—=
A =+—H: AR¥38,661,0007C)
(BtFE30(b)(1) ) » 8k R 238 5y Je HoAth B Wik
TE A A — 4 TR i T =R R 2 B S

(a)  WREES T
TR IR > R 8 5 B RS I 40

IR 8 BB 4 2 5 o B WS T B B G
SR TSRS S K H At B8 ik

based on the invoice date and net of allowance for IH) Z BRE A an T -
doubtful debts, is as follows:
The Group
L |

2014 2013
~E TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EFi A BT T
Within 1 month — AN 772,594 667,559
1 to 3 months — & =i H 393,214 303,420
3 to 6 months = BN A 176,092 139,651
Over 6 months A Sl H 42,286 44,619
1,384,186 1,155,249

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within
60 days to 90 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
note 27(a).

28 Sy JRE AT 3 T T R A S A A i T
W60 H 90 H A 2 1 - A B A 4
] 2 A5 R B 2 o — 25 I O Bt
§E27(a) °
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

18

Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b)

Impairment losses

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly (Note 1(h)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, is as follows:

18

B2 By B J At W WLk JE (4)

(b)

Tk 6L NS 4R

A B 22 5 B WU R B M M R 2
BE B R R A B P AL Bk > BRIE AR
B T 5 A i [m] g 3 2 AT REE AN K
TEBERE UL > (s 1R B B R 58 5
B i SR 2 B W v (MR
1(h)) -

4y IR (600 ELI R B
55) 2 BB :

The Group
A KM

2014 2013

e e 1' F< e
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T AR T
Balance at 1 January W—H—HZ&% 5,486 1,604
Recognised CLERR 10,670 4,026
Write back i 1] (607) (12)
Write off 3 (4,438) (132)
Balance at 31 December Wt H=4+—HZ &k 11,111 5,486

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade
debtors of RMB28,905,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB9,448,000) was individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivable related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivable is not expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB9,056,000 was recognised (2013:
RMB3,837,000).

WoE—NE++ A =+—H"
AEE 2 X5 MBI AR
28,905,0007C ( =& — =4+ ]
=+ —H: ANR%9,448,00000) #
8] 731 8 5 Jy 8 BB o % AR A UK
{H M i 2K T BRLAT B UK 2 B P
B - A SR A T A% RE Ui 3k IR
TEHA A A ATl Im] o (R Ut N R ¥ 2
9,056,0007C 2 5 & R R (=&
— = 4F 1 3,837,0000C) B ERE -
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o B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

Trade and other receivables (continued) 18 28 5 M 3 b JRE W sk I (4)
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) S R WAL =2 32 5 E R0 M Tk e R M SR
impaired 17
The Group
A4
2014 2013
EewE oF o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRWET T
Neither past due nor impaired 4 A IR A U (E 1,325,773 1,097,964
Less than 1 month past due a3 0 i — i A 12,488 48,081
1 to 3 months past due i — 2 =M A 13,765 3,489
3 to 6 months past due i = 2 N8 H 14,366 1,753
1,366,392 1,151,287
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired AR IR A I 2 IR A AR ) B
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there AN S HL R RISk 2 BB P
was no recent history of default. -
Receivables that were past due but no impaired s U AE A Dok (L 2 BB A 3 T B A%
relate to a number of independent customers that LA RIFAC G REBLE
have a good track record with the Group. Based IBRCR BRI SRS p A
on past experience, management believes that no HF 2 A5 R AR N I K5 i 4
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of AT B R 2 T DA A Bl Il - A S
these balances as there has not been a significant i 58 2 SN0 S T AR 5% 5 &5 AR A I
change in credit quality and the balances are still e ITI
considered fully recoverable.
Pledged deposits 19 CiMEHK
Pledged deposits represented bank deposits pledged to ORI AE 3 Hs O T 4RAT7E A 45 T 4R AT
bank as securities for certain banking facilities (Note F8& (MfaF22b) ) K EATZEYE (Mf721) 2
22(b)) and bills payable (Note 21). W2 SRATAF K
Cash and cash equivalents 20 HEKRBEEMED
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BELkBE&FHEDAHE:
The Group The Company
AL AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
SEOWE S SFONE CF oSk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWTE ARWTZT ARWFLZ ARFTT
Cash at bank and in hand ~ $RAT &% T BB & 305,856 240,919 1,713 925
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RHI )

20 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b)

20 BeRkBEFED @)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIEGABEEENAREZH
generated from operations: M
2014 2013
e S ' E20 S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR¥Trx A R Ic
Operating activities FEE- & 37
Profit before taxation R B i Ve ) 269,259 168,892
Adjustments for: RN 51 25 JH i
Depreciation g 5(c) 132,683 94,958
Amortisation of lease T 15 7R B AT O
prepayments 5(c) 7,359 8,341
Interest income on bank SRATAE ORI B A
deposits 4 (6,631) (5,633)
Finance costs A B A 5(a) 157,586 131,185
Loss on disposal of Y- BE K&
property, plant and R E
equipment 4 4,876 1,259
Impairment loss on e & REEZ
non-current financial T I 18
assets 5(c) 11,912 -
Share of loss of an JRE A gt 7 2 ) g 18
associate 1,705 -
Unrealised profit A H 1] — G W
from downstream NI i |
transaction to an R 5 B Ui A
associate 1,354 -
Net foreign exchange HMHE (Uias)
(gain)/loss i 48 1 #E (500) 525
Changes in working BB
capital:
Change in inventories fFEz 58 (57,363) (74,901)
Change in trade and 22 5y B Al B ik
other receivables RIEZ 5 ) (285,837) (151,551)
Change in trade and 32 5y Be F Al 8 At
other payables RIE 2 52 ) 925,603 (52,528)
Change in deferred IR AE WA 2 5 )
income 2,657 (21,619)
Cash generated from EBEEZBE
operations 1,164,663 98,928
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Trade and other payables

21 R RH

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5)

e JE £5F sk JH

The Group The Company
N AL H

2014 2013 2014 2013

TR-NE ZER-ZE DR-NE DR -S4

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000

ARBTL ARETLT ARETFLZ AREFIT

Trade payables 22 5 WE AT 3 H 540,548 394,212 - -

Bills payable (i) JEAT S (1) 833,810 145,170 = -
Other payables and accruals At J8 AT 3K IE B

JEF 2 H 335,944 278,545 38,568 17,454

Deferred income (Note 24) WEAEUT A (Bt 5£24) 17,957 15,689 = -

1,728,259 833,616 38,568 17,454

Amounts due to related parties are included in trade and
other payables, the breakdown of which is set out in note
30(b)(ii). All of the trade and other payables are expected
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or
are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis
of trade payables and bills payable (which are included in

52 Gy B Al JRE A 3K TE G 4 JE 5] BE L 7 3K
TE > HERE FUR B EE30(0) (i) « T 2 5 K
Al A T T T R — A A A A R
By Wi A BME R A 0 -

TR AR 588 5 H R 2 5 5 EAY
WA K AT S8 (LT E A S 5 B Ho A g

trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

FEERIE) 2 MR lie o A dnF

The Group
N |

2014 2013

e e I' E22 X
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR EF AR ¥TFC
Within 1 month — AR 402,728 105,137
1 to 3 months — & =l A 748,797 263,682
3 to 6 months =FENAH 176,317 152,280
Over 6 months R R 7S AR A 46,516 18,283
1,374,358 539,382

1) Bills payable were secured by pledged bank
deposits of RMB310,042,000 as at 31 December
2014 (31 December 2013: RMB46,558,000) (Note

19).

() Mo FE—WE+—"H=+—H
12248 DL R §310,042,0007C ( —
E—=ZH+_A=+—H: AR¥
46,558,0007T ) Z E &I 881717 74
R (BtaE19) -
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNREIR)
22 Loans and borrowings 22 BEREER
(a) Loans and borrowings were repayable as (a) BEREEERBBAWT
follows:
The Group
A 4

2014 2013

EoemgE SFs
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR ANR¥TF T
Within one year — 4R 1,723,782 1,786,999
After 1 year but within 2 years — R EWEN 144,250 254,423
After 2 years but within 5 years i 4 & {H #.4F (X 135,000 241,267
279,250 495,690
2,003,032 2,282,689

(b)  Terms b))
The Group
7 4

2014 2013

SEewE F o=
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARH T AR HT T
Secured bank loans A HLH SR AT B 1,734,032 1,669,881
Unsecured bank loans MEHC R ER AT 2K 269,000 612,808
2,003,032 2,282,689
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o B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

22  Loans and borrowings (continued) 22 B REE )
(b)  Terms (continued) (b) K (A7)
The secured bank loans were secured by the R B A7 SRR ERAT B DA
following assets of the Group as at the end of the L LT & VR o
reporting period.
The Group
A 48
2014 2013
—E 4 —F—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tz ARWT T
Carrying value of assets: % R T A -
Property, plant and equipment LE SN N & ]
(Note 12) (KtaE12) 127,531 36,650
Lease prepayments (Note 13) AT (B FE13) 308,527 363,274
Bills receivable (Note 18) WEW g (Kt 1s) 200,210 229,613
Pledged deposits (Note 19) CAEIN AR (B aE19) 20,172 30,458
Inventories ety 40,000 -
Total Bt 696,440 659,995

As at 31 December 2014, banking facilities of the
Group totalling RMB3,235,850,000 (31 December
2013: RMB3,455,270,000) were utilised to the
extent of RMB2,130,569,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB2,401,430,000).

As at 31 December 2014, seven (2013: eleven)
of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of
the subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios, which are
commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 27(b). As at 31
December 2014, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached.

B FE-WEF =+ —H
A E A3 R 3,235,850,000
P QR S A VS [ty phl S
N F63,455,270,0007C) 2 4715
s AR %2,130,569,0007C (
E-=ZEFH=F—H: AR
2,401,430,00070) 8T &) H »

WoE—NEF+H=+—H &
EEEIE (O F-=F 0+ TH) 8B
1105 SEZE e i A B R A 71 25 T
EEAEBR LR B (F Lk
G Rl REST oL 2 B HE) R ]
EE - AL EZERY B
PR B2 A5 R JR S B SR R B 0 - AR 4R
9 B A LR R Y % AE A o
B A A I O B 4 B 2
A M EE27(0) o A ZF—U4E| —
HAH=+—H > W& EMARHC
PREUE 2 #4 -
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23  Obligations under finance leases

il & S AT
The Group
3 3
2014 2013
I “F-zf
Present value Present value

of the minimum Total minimum of the minimum  Total minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
i I A & R IEH 5 R E R 5 &
sk 2 B E €5 WO vl A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB'000
ARBFL  AREFZ ARFTT  ARFTIL
Within 1 year —iER 26,212 27,04 26,004 26,830
After 1 year but within 2 years — SRR 6,314 6,787 24,516 27,024
After 2 years but within 3 years AR AR (0 AR I - - 5,906 6,787
6,314 6,787 30422 33,811
33,811 60,641
Less: total future interest expenses W AR B A (1,285) (4,195)
Present value of lease obligations MEETZHH 32,526 56,446
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T E A

Deferred income 24

FUN VLB I IR T B BRI R Z AR SE A 2

The movements in deferred income as stated under current

and non-current liabilities are as follows: BT :
The Group
A4
2014 2013
Accumulated deferred income: Bt BB A - B =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRWET T
At the beginning of the year T AER) 79,147 100,766
Received during the year A4 TN BT 15,700 4,585
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 4) B AR N RS (M AE4) (13,043) (26,204)
At the end of the year AR 81,804 79,147
Less: current portion included in trade Uk A 3E Gy B HoAth E At
and other payables (Note 21) I B R
(Hfit21) (17,957) (15,689)
63,847 63,458

O SUE WL LA B A A T 2 7 B B A
AF o [ 2 Y BT E A 2 BAS T BUA S 2
R A B 4 o BT BTG 2 RO ol B < 0 45
fo e BB AR DR R e R R AR SE WA

Deferred income represents government grants obtained
for the purposes of subsidising the Group’s operation and
sponsoring the costs of acquisition of fixed assets incurred
by the Group. Government grants received are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income.

S A A T R 22 R 4 A
B 42 B 5 7 22 AR 00 ) 4 38 e e
5 4535 0 <

Government grants received to subsidise the operation
costs are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the related costs of
operation are incurred.
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24 Deferred income (continued)

24

Government grants received for sponsoring costs of

acquisition of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss

over the useful life of the asset to offset the depreciation

charge of the relevant assets.

Included in the deferred income as at 31 December
2014, RMB5,354,000 (2013: RMB5,315,000) and
RMB76,450,000 (2013: RMB73,832,000) represent

balances of government grants received to subsidise

the operation costs and government grants received

for sponsoring costs of acquisition of fixed assets,

respectively, but not yet recognised in profit or loss.

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25

of financial position

EIEW N (#1)

L D S T AR T B 2 BT
o Bl < 4 A 0 T AR A 4B i A AR
DASK 8 A7 B 7 2 S B B S o

W oFE—WE+F A=+ —HFAE
FEUE A 2 3 H N R ¥5,354,00000 (=
F—=ZF NR¥5,315,00000) & AR
#76,450,0000C ( = F — =4 AR ¥
73,832,00075 ) 43 Fll 15w A R 484 B X I E
Bly Wi g 11 o 7 2 AR T BUAS 2 B A B

o e AR R 4R AR A R o

T &5 £ W B 5IR D 3 2 P 5 Bt

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) T &% A W IR D8 26 9 =z BP9 B I
of financial position represents: i
The Group
A 45
2014 2013
e U E: S —E =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
At 1 January w—H—H 32,975 30,575
Provision for PRC income tax H ] T A5 1 A
(Note 6(a)) (Bt 7E6(a) ) 52,206 31,287
Provision for Hong Kong Profits 7 5 | 15 #i 15 f#
Tax (Note 6(a)) (Mtite(a)) — 255
Provision for PRC land Hp (] b 2 (E B A
appreciation tax (Note 6(a)) (M #t6(a)) 11,106 -
Income tax paid CATH T 13 B (59,062) (29,142)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B ASF B A b (B (11,106) -
At 31 December Bt -H=+—H 26,119 32,975
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25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25 REZFMBERNERNZEH
of financial position (continued) (#)
(b)  Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) L T 72 3 #iE B JH & E ¢
The components of deferred tax assets recognised AR IR A SR BEBS IR 0 3Rl R 2 AR A
in the consolidated statement of financial position Tl T AR AR S B AN
and the movements during the year are as follows:
The Group
K
Impairment Employee
of benefits Impairment Government
non-current accrued  Impairment  loss on bad grants in
financial but not losson  and doubtful Unrealised deferred
assets paid inventory debts Tax loss profit income Total
FHiH JEGH A FREE  REREE BERARZ
SMEERIE 1 H Al [ i T BEER  AZBEA  BREYE gt
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETL  ARETL  ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETZ
Deferred tax arising from i & 4 Z BB JE
At 1 January 2013 RZF—=F
—A—H - - 305 273 2,609 - 24,558 21,745
Charge/(credited) to profitor B 1B/
loss (7tA) - 1,181 (305) 649 (2,609) - (5,666) (6,750)
At31 December 2013 RoF—Z4
FZAZt-H - 1,181 - 922 - - 18,892 20,995
At 1 January 2014 RZF— N5
—H—H - 1,181 - 922 - - 18,892 20,995
Chargel(credited) to profitor A% FH0kz /
loss (FA) 1,787 (632) - 843 198 23,494 (7,031) 18,659
At 31 December 2014 RZF 4
TRt 1,787 549 - 1,763 198 23,494 11,861 39,654
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25

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

(b)

()

Deferred tax assets recognised: (continued)

At July 17, 2014, Guangdong Xingfa transferred
certain land use right to Xingfa Real Estate in
the amount of RMB158,656,000. Unrealized
profit generated from this intra-group transaction
was RMB93,976,000, which was subjected to
PRC corporate income tax at a rate of 15% in
Guangdong Xingfa. The deferred tax effect
in respect of such temporary difference was
recognized at a rate of 25% which represents the
applicable tax rate when such unrealized profit is
to be realized outside the Group by Xingfa Real
Estate.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB596,236,000
(2013: RMB403,755,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of RMB29,812,000 (2013: RMB20,188,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the foreign-invested enterprise and the
directors have determined that the profits will not

be distributed in the foreseeable future.

25

>

(7

(b)

()

’j\n \

)

o W BIR DL N Z P 15 B

ORI IEHG & (4)

R E—PUAEE A R R
TN T b b R R T
B E > & A N R 158,656,000
JG o JE R OB OEE wk % 4 WA A A
M 22 5 ) o 5 B s A 2 N R
93,976,0007C > ZH # AN 15% 119 H B 1>
ST o 5% W IRF 25 BL A 4% 4L B IH
BB TN05% > 5 LA 5 R I R A

A5 A1 B B 0 oR 5 B g ) o
B FE-MEF = —H

B A 4 g A R R
Bo i Al 2 WS ES NR KK
596,236,000 ( = %F — =4F: AR
#403,755,0007C ) ° & 4 Bl JEH A &
ANE#29,812,00000 ( —F—=

N R #20,188,0007C ) Mff 455t 43 IR %
SR R A AT 2 BLE T LATERR
JR A B AN RIS E ¥
JE S BRI AN
AT 531 2 R i A o
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(a)

fo B B 5 i B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

26 JBeAS ~ il i B IR B

Movements in components of equity (a) HE# TR
The reconciliation between the opening and AR B A3 W A 45 A 2 AR B AR
closing balances of each component of the Group’s K52 BRI 45 A Wt 5 8)
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated % o A% T 3 RE g AL BB 45 A 4T
statement of changes in equity. Details of the W B AR R 2 S B s s N
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company
KA
Retained
earnings/
(accumulated
Share Share Other Exchange loss)
capital premium reserve reserve A AR/ Total
BA  BBEE O JUERE  EReH  (RHEE) A5t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AR  ARETL ARETFLE ARETFLT AREFLZ ARETL
At 1 January 2013 “E-ZE-H—H 3,731 196,160 441,976 160 4,617 646,044
Profit for the year Er i A - - - - 8,377 8,377
Other comprehensive income ERUETTION - - - 393 - 393
Total comprehensive income FEROHIASR AEH
for the year - - - 393 8,377 8,770
Dividends approved in respect of & AEHEEZ &
previous year - (16,592) - - - (16,592)
At31 December 2013 R-F-ZF+"H=Z1—-H 3731 179,568 441976 553 12,994 638,822
At 1 January 2014 PZF—mE~H—H 3,731 179,568 441,976 553 12,994 638,822
Loss for the year FERR - - - - (4,051) (4,051)
Other comprehensive income BRLESTION - - - 7 - 27
Total comprehensive income FEREMALHE
for the year - - - 27 (4,051) (4,024)
Dividends approved in respect of & AEHEEZ i &
previous year - - - - (16,595) (16,595)
At 31 December 2014 REF-WEFZH=F—H 3731 179,568 441976 580 (7.652) 618,203
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26
(b) Dividends
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders

of the company attributable to the year

JB A ~ il il B BB S ()

(b) BB
@) JE ] A5 4 2 2K 4 ) fE 25 IR
FIRE B
2014 2013
ZE A —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR W T AR T T

Final dividends proposed A ¥ B R 1% 4 ik
after the end of reporting  JRA* 2 4 B 35 4 i 2
period per ordinary share A S

A final dividend of HK$0.09 per ordinary
share (2013: HK$0.05) to all equity
shareholders of the Company have been
proposed by the directors and are subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the

annual general meeting.

The final dividends proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of the

reporting period.

29,678 16,592

A R I A B AR N R A
B HRUR B AU B S A A 3
f0.09% 6 (& — =
0.05¥ 7T ) » M ZE 1 M AR B
FE AR R b -

T A AR AR R IR 2 R
S PSS % S A S A e
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Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26  HEA ~ i 5 S B, (43

(b)  Dividends (continued) by BE ()
(ii)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders i) REAHERITNZS LM
of the Company attributable to the B BAF P2 JE AT K 2 v s
previous financial year, approved and T B
paid during the year
2014 2013
e S ' E20 S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EFi AR ¥ET T

Final dividends in respect % 4% A it 1 J2
of the previous financial ~ JRf 2 F—1A

year, approved and WP A 2 R
paid during the year, of J B g e 3 4 i
HK$0.05 per ordinary 0.05%5 7t
share (2013: HK$0.05 per (% —=
ordinary share) 3 A% 48 10,055 o0 16,595 16,592
(c) Share Capital (c) J% A<
Authorised, issued and fully paid share capital B~ O BT R
Authorised: E
2014 2013
ZE A ZE-CE
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bt 43 % H &®  RhHHE B
(’000)  HKD’000 (000) HKD’000

(TH) T (T Ti#T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each B T EO0.01 3 T 2
AL 4 % 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26 A GEfE R BES (47)
(c) Share Capital (continued) (c) A (4
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: CBETRHE IR :
2014 2013
SR e St
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares Amount shares fully paid shares
ity # H Tl 2% Tt #H SR ey 8 0
('000)  HKD’000 RMB ('000)  HKD'000 RMB
equivalents equivalents
000 000
(TR) Fib it (Fhe) Tt e
AR¥Tx NRWF I
At 1 January and R=A—=A Rk
at 31 December BrZA=+—H 418,000 4,180 3,731 418,000 4,180 3,731
(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves d) fEEEERENE
@) Share premium 1)) J 1 s 1

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account and other reserve account of
the Company are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

RIEH SRS AR AR
) 2 A7 v {3 B S JFC A fokt
MR 2 4l 3 IR TR > HE
PR IR S H AR
A ] RE T LA SR
B i A b B 2 AR
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital and the existing balance on
the share premium account of a subsidiary
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company
represents the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents waivers of
liabilities due to related parties.

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory general reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity

shareholders.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN BRI 5)

26 A GEfE RS (47)

(@  GEMEE R (AT

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

H A faf 15

AL 2 HAb G5 LT W
HZ R (a) O U HEHE A
A AR Y A B 2 JBEAS THIE S
BUA &5 5 B (o)A R AR B
W EEZ)NAETH -+ IJLH
A S B I 41 B S IR BE AT 2
JBE A7 1 o

A 7 2 HA 95 A T T
B2 T IR
Al 2 55 B I (5 B0y
NI B L IN
EERILER U S e
T 58 7 2 BB 1 4 <

B il

L A A i e 2 ST R
A LR

I 75 GE it

R B i R e A T AR SR A B R
I B HI) SRR R DA % A 4 (]
1] o Jag 2 ) 2 A Ak 2 A )
RRNT o B 2 R ZE 4 AR
5 A B & w R B RO e
ZHRZ B DI0%E L E—
P foti Al L AR A 0 T
EAR 2 50% B 1k o 18] 7% ik
JIT AR 3 A 2B A 43 TR B R T
M 2 IR 2 HITE H
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26

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

PRC statutory reserves (continued)

PRC statutory reserves can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to equity shareholders
proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
companies outside the PRC.

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves

of the Company as at 31 December 2014 was
RMB614,472,000 (2013: RMB635,091,000).

26

A ~ il o B S, (45
d) FEEEERS (&)
(iv) o E (A

H B 5 E it T AR B At
TEAF 2 8 () > Slel
AR P 25 AR B R 7T
U L o 1 5 <6 8 47 587 JBC 4y
LA AR o AT B R AT AR
R PIREEME A Z
25% -

(v) LG

HEE 52 fof A 64 PR 45 5 v B 355
B T B B AR BT PR 2 P
A R 5 25 B o

(e) Iy Uk Gk o

R oFE—PEF =+ —H &
28 F 2 n] B UR A AR N R
614,472,0007C (=& — =4 : AR
#635,091,0007C) ©
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and obligations under finance leases)
plus unaccrued purposed dividends, less cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

26 A GEfE RS (47)

(®

BEAREH

AR AR Y T BOE ARG T R 2 PR
A B 1R AR I BE ) H e
B 7KV 2oy E by MR E - A DA
PR AS AT Rl - DA A i R
HRAR A [

A 4 B 7 WA R R A B A
B > DAAE A R 80 £ 8 K- B
A7 SR M v P R [ i BB AT TE AR
SR UL T 27 AR ) 4 2 B AR i 2 [ 1 SF
iy - Szl 4K 75 B 05 1Y A R AC K
REEAT 2 o

A AR O AC T R A A A R
PEEAL 1‘% Ejtlﬂiﬁ'ﬁa B - i

KR AMERAEBT A (8
FE w3 R A £ A R Al A 6 T
1) &SI AR TR 2 s i 2 {Uﬁfﬁéé
R B4 S W DL K B AR AR 3K - 4

EFZIWQZ'-‘@%%EEZ@?%%B%J&%
FHE R R -
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26

(f) Capital management (continued) f) EAREH (4F)
During 2014, the Group’s strategy was to maintain i DU AE S AR AR B SRS T H
the debt-to-equity ratio at a level considered AAERE A LU SR A R A A 4 g
reasonable by the Group’s management from time REHERT A RNER G

K- o J HfE R BT B PR AR
TR R ) A A B SR R - B
A7 0 BB A5 B8 8 4 B R 5 L

to time with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to equity shareholders, issue new shares or raise
new debt financing.

The Group
A4
2014 2013
ZE A e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt it ANR¥ T AR WET o
Current liabilities: DB
— Loans and borrowings — BRI fERE 22 1,723,782 1,786,999
— Obligations under —MEHEET
finance leases 23 26,212 26,024
Non-current liabilities: JE B A A
— Loans and borrowings — BRI fEE 22 279,250 495,690
— Obligations under —REHE ST
finance leases 23 6,314 30,422
Total debt B A 2,035,558 2,339,135
Add: Proposed dividends — Jill : &A% B 26(b) 29,678 16,592
Less: Cash and cash W B M B4
equivalents LEY 20 (305,856) (240,919)
Pledged deposits O R4 A7 3K (330,214) (77,016)
Adjusted net debt A8 R AT T AR 1,429,166 2,037,792
Total equity HE 25 4050 1,183,961 975,744
Less: Proposed dividends ¥ : 2% % 8 26(b) (29,678) (16,592)
Adjusted capital FER RS 1,154,283 959,152
Adjusted net debt-to-capital %3 B iF & i G A
ratio [ 124% 212%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

A ) B LB A RIS 2 AR 5B

AR R PR
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Financial risk management and fair
values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, commodity

price and currency risks arises in the normal course of the

Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and

the financial risk management policies and practices used

by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
debtors are due within 60 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 December 2014, 2%
(31 December 2013: 3%) and 8% (31 December
2013:14%) of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively within the plain
aluminium profiles and aluminium profiles with
surface finishing segment.
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B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN BRI 5)

< Tl JE B A B e 2 o

TR AL B AR AR R B
T AR 32 2 BT A SR T 2 B SR R
HHE AR o AN SR T BT R % 2 % A Ja B B A R
P DA B S By <l L B A B RO

B R .
(a) 1 88 B

AEE 2GSRI EER B K
Al RE i 3 IE o P B E AR B
B N7 4 B AR % G M B R
W58 Zy B FL At Wi BRI > #r
TORGEEHEE - ESBELMARD
HEAT R AIAE B FEAL o 5% 55 FEAG ) &
A% 38 A 7 B 3 IRF 22 A R Bk
H F 2 A 2R 77 > 3% 58 28 Bl %
5 2GR DL R TR I TE 2 R
BRI o 28 5 ME W B TEL A 85 2R H AR
60H ZE90H N E| - — g1 5 > A&
LE NG S ] % 5 S0 TBUAT: o R4 4 o

AL B R A2 2 A5 B R B 2 A
FEMFRFLEZATENHELZ
AR 1 BT 5 288 - TR A A L B v
[ SNl v o N S i
A & P A 25 KRG RS IR A o
WoE—WNEF+H=+—H, %
Sy B FoAth 1 WS R B FH 2 2% (-
FE—Z4E+A=+—H:13%) &
8% (—F—=F+_H=1+—H:
14% ) 43 Al A& B A 42 [ 1 25 40 7 4
O3S B 458 3% T i PG TR o R e K
HERAEKREF o
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Company as set out in
note 29, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 29.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

27

<o Tl JE B A B B O P AHL ()

(a fEERBRE (&)

B % 2 e i (s BB R &t AT
A7 JIT R R A i ) 20 T B 5 IR DR 1A
HemEE (QETEemTR)
ZHRTEME (FENBRAT AT B (e M) o
R B RE20 T 2 A 23 W) AF: 2 S5 4fE
PR - A B2 ] 3107 20 2 (36 A T JFE A 35
PR > B A B2 1] B A 2 =) ZHUR 3205
B B o TR i UK W 4 B RS
Y& ORI ZHUR 32 2 o v £ B LB % I

FE29 4 7% -

A T A 5 3052 oy B H At BB SRR A
JHRZ Z R E— 2 B

B EORFRU B RELS -

(b)  WE & & E

U B S A A 4 I 3 AT B
ST o 5 AT e o A 2 ) RO
T 7 ) B B 4 7 R B ST A
FERAME DL TR AER T Bl
it Ah e 8 o S U 5 M AR 3 A 0 15
B DUREAT R KR B )

E
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Financial risk management and fair 27 b B A B R A PR o)
values (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b)  WEYE &R (F)
The following table details the remaining T 2RI R R A A 2 4
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting B2 R B AR B RIE - TS
period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which RIS E (B A LR
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows AREC (N TE W) R S R 2 8l
(including interest payments computed using TTAPRFHE 2 FLERIR) R AL E
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates AT 2 5 FOH WIEHE
current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2014
ZE W
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
GEENTE R
More than 1 More than 2 Balance
Within 1 year but  years but sheet
year or on less than less than ~ More than carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
Ak —HEf A 1% o REHA
BER  MEERN  BHLER fIRiX1] it I 1 £
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWTL ARWTLZ ARWTLZ ARWTLZ ARWTZ AR¥FL
Bank loans BATEN 1,780,087 148,388 143,303 - 207L778 2,003,032
Obligation under finance lease MER &S 27,024 6,787 = = 3,811 32,526
Trade and other payables YN ER AN 1,728,259 = = - 1728259 1,728,259
3,535,370 155,175 143,303 - 3833848 3763817
2013
“E-ZR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARSI
More than I~ More than 2 Balance
Within 1 year but years but sheet
year or on less than less than ~ More than carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
L —H 4 o I&EA
EEk  EEEN HEFR TR At e
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ARETE ARETL ARBTLC ARETLC ARBTLC ARETL
Bank loans RITHH 1865530 285276 262549 - 2413355 282,689
Obligation under finance lease REHEHE 26,830 27,024 6,787 = 60,641 56,446
Trade and other payables 25 R A RER 5 833,616 = = = 833,616 833,616
2,725,976 312,300 269,336 - 3307612 3,172,751

B 2% En 2 AR A BR A A XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
3% Annual Report 2014
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B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans of the
Group amounting to RMB1,780,087,000 were due
to be repaid during 2015. The short-term liquidity
risk inherent in this contractual maturity date was
not significantly changed after the reporting period.

PN b A AT TR > AR A I B N
[ #51,780,087,0007C Z R 41 3K T3
T — AR N B T R e
ARG FB A H E A 2 )

JRRL g 7 i J01 4% Sl 4 K A )

149



150

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 $5 j B BR A 7)

A

Annual Report 2014 4 7§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A W 5 A i

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS )

27 Financial risk management and fair 27 iR B B R P AE ar)
values (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) IR JE B
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily A SR 2 ) R B 32 Bk B RAT A
from borrowings from banks. Borrowings issued at A o $e VF W) A A B ] R R 2
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group H 803 Tl A A A 1B JE R 2 B 4 T
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest ) 258 B B 2 ST {E ) 26 LB o A 4
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate 9]l A G W % 2 R R LA T
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) () e
below.
) Interest rate profile i) Vg &
The following table details the interest N R TS A S B i R
rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing FTE B 2 R R A o
borrowings at the end of the reporting
period.
The Group
AR
2014 2013
W St
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
RS B BIA % S
000 ‘000
i T
Fixed rate borrowings: EREE:
Bank loans RATHE 4.80%-7.80% 1329210 2.85%-6.60% 1,360,952
Variable rate borrowings RS
Obligation under finance lease BEHERL 4.86% 32,526 5.23% 56,446
Bank loans RITEH 5.60%-17.00% 673,822 5.54%-6.60% 921,737
706,348 978,183
Total borrowings i 2,035,558 2,339,135
Fixed rate borrowings as a ERERIHEEAHEA M

percentage of total borrowings

65%

58%
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(0

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by
approximately RMB5,953,962 (2013:
RMB6,044,855).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2013.

Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN BRI 5)

27 <ol KR A BE K A P AE (40

(0

(d)

R )l B (A7)

(ii)

IR IE S BT

RZE AR = —
Ho At Fl R 3, F
FH 100 FE B > i H A T A
BRI AN AERZK
BiA% s R S AR B s A 519 R
b N # N R 5,953,962
L (& — =4 AR
6,044,8557C) ©

R U A A A 1
ok B A% Ui A B A% B8 s R ] g
JEE LB 2 B IR 55 ) o URK T 43
T A1 55 ) 2R 8 B s 4 R
(R JECI 2 B s 0 i
N U T S A e |
A A S B v B R R
JE B 2 #% 2 A T o iR
ESE)iS S N i
BRI A TR EAE
B4 U P SRR AN SR
@Z%ﬁ&@ﬂ&ﬁ i Al
2B T AN A B R R A
i AR 2 AR S Bl A 2
PR BAE AL 5L - % T Y
DL F— AR 2 A — Sk e
1T

£ R B

N RS IR AT A L 2 &
319 5 4 REE L) v B 2 A7 v ) IEEURF T it
T2 A1 R BR ] o A 45 3] 3 B iE i DU
HLHZEH M B 2 RE B LIS 2
P WA 2 88 K i R 37 11 A
Bir o w% JEL B 2k B W T & G o
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

i)

(i)

27 <ol L KE A BE & A P AE (40

d) BWREEE ()

Forecast transactions i  HHX G
The Group hedges certain of its estimated AREEBHA TAHRMCAEL
foreign currency exposure in respect of H 1% §5 B K B DL K b A5 ]
committed future sales and purchases REMEAT 2 FINEH 6 g E 2
and highly probable forecast sales and iy 5T A0 W JEL B R A A AT S
purchases. e
Exposure to currency risk i) S BRI
The following table details the Group’s N R TS A S B i R
exposure at the end of the reporting period 1E L2 A B2 e B M LA Sh
to currency risk arising from recognised Z H A EHE 2 R A
assets or liabilities denominated in a 7 B A AR T B A 2 A
currency other than the functional currency B AR o ik 2 5 H B9 & -
of the entity to which they relate. For Lo o IV WN Y
presentation purposes, the amounts of the ol UAE & B 2 B R iR
exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated B o g AN SE T B TS R
using the spot rate at the year end date. EAREFHEINEWTEAZ
Difference resulting from the translation ZE AN AFETEN -
of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency is excluded.
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
AR EU I =t A B
HKD USD HKD USD
# E T E
‘000 000 ‘000 ‘000
i i i i
Trade and other receivables %5 J A B WA 4755 37,103 9373 34,556
Cash and cash equivalents  BL& RI &S HEY 27,845 3,685 27,102 7,895
Pledged deposits CHEA TR 3T - 3,19 -
Trade and other payables 7 o WO A 2R (5,975) - (530 (123)
Short term loans A - - (47,172) (64.,489)
Gross and net exposure CHERERERA K
arising from recognised EEZARAEREE
assets and liabilities 29,842 40,788 (8,031) (22,161)
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Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables

remained constant.

27

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

< Tl L B A B e O P AHL ()

d) BWREEE ()
(i) BB R IE (4
B JRE S 5 0

N AR BUR fif A 5 S o )
ARAE R A B R I 2 MR
% H A B 5 8 > M8 A
At J B B R AN B R
8 I 2 PR BLAR da ) B fR P i
A AT RE th B 2 RVRG 54 )

2014 2013
BRI Y

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) in profit after  (decrease) in profit after
foreign tax and foreign tax and
exchange rate retained profit  exchange rate  retained profit
EELA/  BHRRE  ExEA/ BARRE
(TH)  BHZPE (T BHZEE
% 000 % ‘000
T 124
United States Dollars E 1% K1Yl 1% (188)
Hong Kong Dollars e 1% 251 1% (68)
Results of the analysis as presented in the EREINZ N R R AR E A

above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period for

presentation purposes.

EHEAAFLUEAAZIRER
Wt | 2 BB A 2 &Rt
BIVIE 52 8 NIk 2 90 H B9 4%
ot IR 2 RE A4 0 N IR
W o
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27
values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Exposure to currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.

(e) Fair values measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values.

<o Tl L B A B B O P AEL ()

d) BWREE (F)
(i) PR B ARG (A
B IR T ()

IR BE AR R 4 5 B 4K
O JE J DL R R % S A ik
R G A AR B JEUR 32 51
JE\ B 2 A SR BB R T
Hoo AL 1% DA S ff 3N
TIREE ML MR 2 4R
P A 2 ) TR AT AR e B i
I o 73 M7 3l A £ 4 10 55 1
IS I B W AR AR ] 2
B & B A 2 R o AT
O 4% B =R — = AF A ] 2
LT o

(©  AFHER

G T B A ) DA 8 R A
B8 2 4 T L 2 B 1 (L SR A
(090 T K32 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN BRI 5)

28 Commitments 28 kB
(a) Capital commitments (a) G A A
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December A Z—H o R B R RN
not provided for in the financial statements were as T R B AT E AR T -
follows:
2014 2013
UK —F—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T ANR¥ T
Contracted for S
— Purchase of property, plant and ~ — & B AR T 2
equipment for the production A L b
base in Chengdu City ERY NS ] 3,828 916
— Purchase of property, plant and — 2 H A& &2
equipment for the production e e b R
base in Yichun City L ERY: SN E ] 5,978 503
— Purchase of property, plant and — — & i 1L/ T = 7K [ 2
equipment for the production A L b
base in Sanshui, Foshan City ERY NS ] 14,123 5,965
— Purchase of property, plant and ~ — %% ¥ 5 17 2 2E /2 Jk b
equipment for the production W2 R
base in Qinyang City A 11,082 11,602
— Building an integrated — A LT R R A A
commercial and residental HEKTEEWE
property base in Nanzhuang,
Foshan City 288,875 36,614
323,886 55,600
Authorised but not contracted for B IZHEH K FT 4 128089 426,610
Total Hwt 451,975 482,210
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28 Commitments (continued) 28 KB ()
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) £ 2 Fl A R i
At 31 December, the total future minimum lease Rt A =1 —H s MR A AT E Y
payments under non-cancellable operating leases A8 RH 40 IE AT B9 2R S d AR AH 6 48 3H
are payable as follows: mr:
2014 2013
R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW T ARIFTIT
Within 1 year —AER 1,372 708
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHBEHFEN 856 1,120
2,228 1,828
29 Contingent liabilities 29 sHAAME
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 A FEWAE A =4 AL EN
December 2014. LI NET R =R
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities of A AR A R 2 AR AR
the Company were as follows:
The Company
A i
2014 2013
SEemE %=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR W T
Guarantees given to banks by the AN T AT B E A
Company in respect of banking By 2 4R AT 5 B2 19
facilities utilised by certain SRAT PR 2 5 R
subsidiaries 768,972 1,253,672

As at 31 December 2014, the directors do not consider it

is probable that a claim will be made against the Company

under any of the guarantees.

A —EL A=t —H ERHRIR

A T AN R AT BB TR AT AT 4fE £ T A8 Bt A
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Material related party transactions 30

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the
following individuals/companies:

Name of related party
Y ES

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

HOK BT R 5

B 5% 55 B 5 k3R L Atb 3 4 BT 4 B 19 32 5
Lo s A > A S BAEAT DA T BEOK B 7 52
5

REE -E—-NFE+_H=Z1T—HI4F
B ERERBU N NN A A K
B g

Relationship with the Group
SiL A 42 1 A 4%

Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (“Leahin Coating™)
(fil L SZ BLRORVA BR 2 7] (1)
1l 57 B R A BRA ] (TSLBERL ) )
Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) (8 B ¥ #5508 M 5 A R A A (6)
A SR B R A BR A B (T BB ARG ) (@)
Guangxi Laibin Yinhai Aluminum Co., Ltd. (“LBYH”)
( JRE 75 20 5 SR8 85 B I 0 A R | ()

Jii VY A B SR M B A R A ] (TR R ) ()

Jiangxi Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangxi Jingxing”)
(VL P & 53 B AR i A IR A 7D (1)

VLV A 5 AR AR R A BR A R ([P 58] 7)

i) The English translation of the company names
is for reference only. The official names of these

companies are in Chinese.

Effectively owned by certain
Executive Directors of the Company
MARFE T ERTEREA
Effectively owned by certain
Executive Directors of the Company
MAR A T EREREA
Joint venture of a substantial
shareholder of the Group,
Guangdong Province Guangxin
Holdings Group Ltd.
A AR ] T SR B SR O P A AR A
RAmZaEdse
Associate of the Group

AL 2 B N

() EELAFAMECGEAEMESE
SN F SO R IE A R
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30 Material related party transactions WRPREIGT RS (#)
(continued)
(a) Transactions (a) 5
Sales and purchase HEH
2014 2013
“E A —E—=
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥ T A R+ Ic
Sales of goods to ME&MT
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB 120,042 99,489
— Jiangxi Jingxing — LV 5 B 17,112 -
137,154 99,489
Purchases of raw materials from & & JF A1k B
— Leahin Coating — 37 B SR 258 1,552
- LBYH — R R 91,435 16,613
91,693 18,165
Dormitory rent (R
— Jiangxi Jingxing — LV 5 Bl 924 -
(b)  Balances with related parties (b) i B 3 5 W &5 iR

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had T AR > A 4R R B B T 4

the following balances with related parties: fRANE

@) Trade and other receivables @) 55 Je H b JE W
2014 2013
SHoWE CF S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T

Trade related B 5 47 B

Xingfa Curtain Wall B e 45,887 38,661
Jiangxi Jingxing YL 7Y 5 Bl 14,417 -
60,304 38,6601
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30 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(b)

(0

30

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

HERBHEET RS (#)

Balances with related parties (continued)

(ii) Trade and other payables

(b)  SLBHETT WA R (A)

(i) R R H A

2014 2013

EemgE %=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T A R+ Ic

Trade related B 5 A B

Leahin Coating AL g 137 189
LBYH 7R BRI 1,532 1,987
1,669 2,176

The amounts due from/(to) related parties
are unsecured, interest free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors
as disclosed in note 7 and the senior management
as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

HE W, (HE A ) B % J7 3K
E

T AR~ S S H [

(0 EEREMABME

TR 2 e (BLIER 7 &
Wi SR8 73 1l o 48% 8 S A 7 A S
HERPERABWERE) T

%

2014 2013

e S U122 R =
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR F i AR ¥ETF T
Short-term employee benefits FL B B AR A 17,614 11,688

Contribution to retirement B R AR B FT 3 AL 3K

benefit plan 203 116
17,817 11,804

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(Note 5(b)).

M & MBEFATER L RA]

(Htit5)) -
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30 Material related party transactions

31

32

(continued)

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions of sales and
purchase above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in the section headed “Continuing
connected transactions” of the Reports of the
Directors of this annual report.

Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period

After 31 December 2014 the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 26(b).

Accounting estimates
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation
expense for future years is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimation.

30

31

32

HERBEET RS (#)

(d)

T B0 R R 52 S 2 9 A Ak

I =0 d FE NG L 3R
W5 28 5 BT A BR 2 1 78 75 b i AR )
(T B 5B 14A % T 5 2 B
HRE T Bk R A B RS G o BT AR
B 14ATE HLE 2 45 7R #8  A A
EHRGHEZ THFARERY ] —
i o

e it 4% 2 Ik B OH

FRPRE-NET A= HEER
IR ARSI B, o 4 — 20 REAR A I R 26(b)

&

CERCED

flFRERBIIA R 2 T AR T

(a)

e

Yo~ R K st K6 RE LAl AR R
(AR - A2 il b Al (T 4R A DL E
BOkATH -

AR B B A A 1A AT T A IR
KR ERIEAE (WA o i A A
RO TR H R AR I
BA 3
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32 Accounting estimates (continued)

(b) Impairments

()

(i)

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment, lease prepayments, non-
current financial assets and prepayment
for machinery, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price
because quoted market prices for these
assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to items such
as level of turnover and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that
is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and
operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are assessed and provided based
on the directors’ regular review of aging
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of

each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)
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A W 5 A i G

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 5 )

32 Accounting estimates (continued)

33

(b)

Impairments (continued)

(iii)

Impairment losses for inventories are
assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of market price
against inventories costs. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the
directors when assessing the market price.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the

IASB has issued a number of amendments and a new

standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2014 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements. These include the following which

may be relevant to the Group.

32

33

& wtfi st )
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A B AR Y T B I e e
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T = BB AR R AR ERT
e HE R > TR AR B A 3 A S B A 5 S 4B
W LR HE L) LA 51 R B A 4R A B
IDECH PSR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

#F B H Mk 1R

BA 46 Y & w20 1) A 3

Amendments to IAS 19, Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions 1 July 2014
WE g wh e QISR 1958 2 BT - SFE A1 # - I B 1k “F—MELH—H
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014
SRR - R R UUE —ZF—MELH—H
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014
R B CE SRR EELUE —F-MEELEHA—H

Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations

I % S 5 S ot S BB 0 L9 2 AT > A I S T i B T I

1 January 2016
—E—-N¥—H—H
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014 (continued)

B U B R M R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN R ¥ 5R)

REEZZF-MNE+ A
= — H Ik 4F B O AR i (0 R AR
BRI fE RT ~ B e B e v R AR T A

B )

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
A H Bk 2 1%

B 4 Y 7 w30 I A 2

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation
I % ot 5 1 60 %E L I R ot o S 238 B B T
78 TF A 1 5 2 I 1 R A T

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

Wk B 5 i e RN SR 15 0F - B R 5 A9 2 W

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

I f 5 o e R SR O5% > 2 T A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standard
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation from the company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
company’s financial year which will begin on 1 January
2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The group is in the process of making an assessment of
the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2016

—F—N¥—-H—H

1 January 2017
—F—tHF—-H—H

1 January 2018
—F - NFE—H—H
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T AF R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ZEF-my = ZR-2F ZZ——8F ZEZ-%F
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANRBFL ARBEFLZ ARETFT ARFTFL ARBFTIL
Assets and liabilities BEEKAM
Property, plant & equipment ESY T 1,882,739 1,832,942 1,560,832 1,331,446 976,726
Non-current financial assets kR emEE = 11,912 11,912 - -
Lease prepayments A 308,527 363,274 371,616 379,957 379,919
Interest in an associate TR W A O RE 45 941 - - - -
Prepayment for machinery 2 AT FOH - - 11,001 56,326 107,050
Deferred tax assets AR A 39,654 20,995 27,745 39,191 25,726
Net current financial (liabilities) MBI &M (A1) /GE T
assets (698,489) (663,809) (460,219) (276,276) (63,902)
Total assets less current liabilities 42 ¥ 7 il i B) & f& 1,533,372 1,565,314 1,522,887 1,530,644 1,425,519
Non-current liabilities FE AR (349,411) (589,570) (660,516) (755,237) (648,106)
Net assets B A 1,183,961 975,744 862,371 775,407 777,413
Capital and reserves e A il 6
Share capital e A 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731
Reserves il 1,180,230 972,013 858,640 771,676 773,682
Total equity attributable to AR RHERE A
equity holders of A B 5 44 40
the Company 1,183,961 975,744 862,371 775,407 777,413
Operating results REka
Turnover B¥m 4,843,915 3,907,457 3,546,566 3,067,450 2,305,749
Profit before taxation I B0 i it 269,259 168,892 109,696 18,388 82,927
Income tax expenses Jr 10 B S (44,653) (38,292) (23,136) (3,576) (10,044)
Profit for the year A JE i ) 224,606 130,600 86,560 14,812 72,883
Attributable to equity holders  f & i A 2 W] R HEF3 A A\
of the Company 224,606 130,600 86,560 14,812 72,883
Basic and diluted earnings per % it 5 A J # % 2 A1
share (RMB yuan) (NRHT) 0.537 0.312 0.207 0.035 0.174

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

b S MR — 8
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